TOWN OF AUBURN, MASSACHUSETTS

This form must be filed at least 48 hours in advance, not including Sat, Sun,
or holidays and must include an agenda of items the chair reasonably expects
to discuss

Date October 6, 2022

Board/Committee: Auburn School Committee Meeting

Building & address: School Committee Room, 5 West Street Auburn, MA 01501

Month: October Date 12 Day of Week Wednesday Time 6:00 p.m.

Agenda ltems:
1 Meeting Minutes Approval from 9/12/22
2 Special Recognition: Ali DeLuca and HS Special Olympics
3 Student Representatives Report
4 Spotlight on Students: AHS Student Council-Discussion of Homecoming Events
5 School Safety
6 COVID-19 Update
7 Superintendent Listening Session & Student Survey
8 Superintendent's Evaluation
9 October 1 Enrollment
10 Budget Kickoff
11 Equity in Special Education Indicators and Initiatives Status 2022-23
12 APS School Building Study Committee
13 Superintendent's Draft Performance Goals for 2022-2023
14 Teaching and Learning Report: MCAS Data, Newsletter
15 Business/Financial Report: Year to Date Budget Report, Budget Transfers,
FY2028 and FY2024 CIP Articles

Jessie FHartington

Committee Chair
*»*TV COVERAGE WILL TAKE PRIORITY ON ROOM ASSIGNMENTS.

Join Zoom Meeting: https://auburn-k12-ma-us.zoom.us/j/85712823082
Please email Mandy Williams if you plan on joining the meeting via Zoom.
mwilliams@auburn.k12.ma.us




Auburn School Committee Meeting Agenda
5 West Street, Auburn, Massachusetts 01501

October 12, 2022 - 6:00 p.m.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://auburn-k12-ma-us.zoom.us/j/85712823082

Meeting ID: 857 1282 3082
Television: Charter Channel 194

YouTube: ACTVAUBURN

Call to Order:

This meeting of the Town of Auburn School Committee is being conducted both in person and
remotely, consistent with Governor Baker's Executive Order of March 12, 2020, and extended
through March 31, 2023.

For the public to join the meeting remotely through Zoom, please use the link posted on the agenda
on the Town’s Website.

The Governor’s Order, along with all supporting materials that have been provided to members of
this body, is available on the Town’s website. The public is encouraged to follow along using the
posted agenda.

Please note that this meeting is being recorded by Auburn Cable Television.

Accordingly, all members of this meeting who will participate: please be aware that other people
may be able to see you, and please take care not to “screen share” your computer. Anything
that you broadcast may be captured by the recording. Thank you.

Pledge:

Our Vision: The Vision of the Auburn Public Schools is to educate and prepare students
for the opportunities and challenges of a changing world.

Our Commitment: We will create, maintain, and support an environment that fosters a
sense of belonging for all students in our schools without regard to race, color, sex,
religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, homelessness, poverty,
spoken language and ability.

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS:

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS:

Ali DelLuca - Auburn High School receiving National Banner Recognition from Special Olympics
International. Auburn High School has successfully achieved national standards of excellence in the
area of inclusion, advocacy and respect. The athletes, partners, students, coaches, volunteers,
teachers, staff and administration at Auburn High School have all played key roles in creating a
social climate where everyone feels included and respected for who they are. Auburn High School
is only 1 of 12 schools in Massachusetts and among 164 schools nationwide to achieve this status
for the 2021-22 school year.



https://auburn-k12-ma-us.zoom.us/j/86020484434

MINUTES: 9/21/22

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES REPORT:

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT:

Spotlight on Students Information
Auburn High School Student Council - Discussion of Homecoming Events

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

School Safety Information
On October 7th, staff participated in the Active Shooter drill under the guidance of the Auburn
Police Department. The drill was successful in that it allowed staff to experience what might be
heard or felt in such a situation. Time was allotted for staff to debrief the process, for the APD to
provide feedback and for questions to be answered. In the coming days, modified drills will be
conducted with students at Auburn Middle School and Auburn High School.

COVID 19 Update Information
Given the current status of COVID 19 guidance, | will only note COVID 19 updates on the school
committee agenda if there are changes that warrant the reporting of such. As noted previously, |
will report COVID 19 positive cases out to the community on Tuesday and Friday of each week. If
there is a classroom or group where 3 or more positive cases are found, families will be notified to
be extra vigilant watching for symptoms with their child. If we experience a significant increase in
staff and student absences, causing the closure of a classroom or a school, we will notify the
community as far in advance as possible. We see this scenario as highly unlikely but want the
community to be aware. The community can access the weekly number of COVID 19 positive
cases via the Data Dashboard located on our website at www.auburn.k12.ma.us.

Superintendent Listening Sessions and Student Surveys Information
The October 3rd Superintendent Listening Session had to be canceled however, we did hold the
October 11th Superintendent Listening Session with members of the APS community. The goal of
the sessions was to share information related to the current draft of the Strategic Plan and to
answer questions and to further explore options to ensure all of our students receive what they
need to be successful in our schools. Students attending SWIS, AMS and AHS are in the process
of completing surveys(copies in your packet), along with the opportunity to participate in a
Discussion Group with the Superintendent(to be scheduled). These results are being compiled
and will be shared with you at a later date. Listening Sessions for teachers will be held during the
week of October 17th.

Superintendent’s Evaluation Information
As noted at the September 7, 2022 School Committee meeting, the Superintendent’s contract
requires the completion of her performance evaluation to take place in October of 2022, reflecting
on her tenure since January of 2022. The Committee will share the conclusions from the
evaluation process outlined at that meeting.

NEW BUSINESS:



https://datastudio.google.com/u/0/reporting/1c696082-5535-4ed4-8dcb-0fca65f011ef/page/ZzRpB

October 1 Enrollment Information
As we do each year, the student enrollment for this school year is included in your packet. As you
can see, we have 7 fewer students enrolled compared to the 2021-2022 school year. This
continues to be lower than the highest enroliment years of 2018-2019 and 2019-2020. We will
monitor this on a regular basis. We have also included information on new student registrations,
out of district placements and school choice enrollment.

Budget Kickoff Information
The 2023-2024 Budget season is upon us. Mrs. Wirizbicki has begun the process of sharing
previous year budget information with members of the Leadership Team as they plan for next
school year. | look for the Committee’s input for items or initiatives that the Committee believes
should be identified as a priority for the 2023-2024 budget. As is the case each school year, we
will be mindful of the contractual obligations delineated in the collective bargaining agreements
currently in place. We will enter negotiations with the Instructional Assistants, Secretaries and
Custodians this school year as the contracts of these groups expire on June 30, 2023. We
continue to monitor bus ridership as it may become necessary to add an additional school bus
next year while also monitoring the transportation and tuition for students in out of district
placements. The proposed 2023-2024 Budget Timeline is as follows:

October 12, 2022 School Committee to discuss/set priorities for FY24 Budget
October 14-November 2nd Leadership Team Budget Preparation and Discussion

November 9, 2022 FY 2024 Budget Document submitted to School Committee

November 30, 2022 Budget Presentations to School Committee

January 4, 2023 School Committee must vote a draft budget to send to Town Manager by
January 6th

January 6, 2023 FY 2024 School Dept. DRAFT Budget Submitted to Town Manager and Chief
Financial Officer

January 9, 2023 FY 2024 School Dept. DRAFT Budget Available for Public
Comment/Questions on Web Site

Equity in Special Education Indicators and Initiatives Status 2022-2023 Information
In your packet you will find an email received from Russell Johnston, Senior Associate
Commissioner from DESE. This email is to inform Auburn of its status related to Significant
Disproportionality, which measures whether students from certain racial and ethnic groups are
disproportionately placed in certain settings and are disproportionately receiving certain kinds of
disciplinary removals. This email also addresses the status of Auburn related to Indicators 4, 9
and 10 which examine if students with IEPs from certain racial and ethnic groups are suspended
or expelled more than comparable students statewide and also if the same group of students are
disproportionately receiving special education services. | am pleased to report to the Committee
that Auburn was either ‘not identified’, ‘not flagged’ or ‘not identified or at risk’. | would like to
share my appreciation for the work Mr. Walton, Director of Pupil Services and his entire team have
done to earn these ratings.

Auburn Public Schools School Building Study Committee Action

As discussed at the School Committee meeting on September 21st, one confirmed and one
potential residential building project in the town of Auburn may have an impact on school enrollment
in the coming years. Given that, | seek the support of the Committee to form the Auburn Public
Schools School Building Study Committee. It is my hope to gather a range of participants from the




school community and the town, to review the current building resources available to us, to discuss
options for the use of current space in school buildings and to recommend options to ensure the
Auburn Public Schools can accommodate new student enroliments in the coming years.

Recommended Motion....to support the formation of the Auburn Public Schools School Building
Study Committee.

Superintendent’s Draft Performance Goals for 2022-2023 Action

As outlined in the Superintendent’s contract, yearly performance goals are to be presented to the
Committee by October 15 each school year. In your packet, you will find draft performance goals.
These are being presented in draft format to allow for the addition or inclusion of any areas noted
from the performance evaluation being completed this evening. The draft goals can be updated
and presented again at the next meeting if warranted.

Recommended Motion.....to accept the Superintendent’s Performance Goals as presented for the
2022-2023 school year.

TEACHING AND LEARNING REPORT: Information
On September 26, the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

released official 2022 MCAS Data to school districts, and on September 29, data was released to
the public. For this evening’s meeting, | have prepared an overview of trends and patterns seen
statewide. As a district, we have initiated meetings examining student results both at the
individual and aggregate level and look forward to sharing information seen in our data at the
October 26th School Committee meeting.

In September, we launched a monthly memo for all Auburn employees. The Teaching and
Learning Newsletter puts the spotlight on teaching and learning inside our schools as well as
offering insights and opportunities to improve our work with students.

BUSINESS/FINANCIAL REPORT:

Year to Date Budget Report Information
Mrs. Wirzbicki has provided a year to date budget report dated October 5, 2022 for your review.

Budget Transfers Action
Mrs. Wirzbicki has provided a listing of Budget Transfers dated October 5, 2022, between the
same series for your information, along with a listing of transfers between different series for which
she is seeking your approval.

Recommended Motion.....to approve the list of Transfers dated, October 5, 2022, as presented
by the Business Manager.

FY2028 and FY2024 CIP Articles Action

Mrs. Wirzbicki and Mr. Fahey, with the input of the Building Principals have put together a list of CIP
needs for FY2028, while reviewing the previously agreed upon FY2024 CIP for needed changes.

These lists are in your packet for your consideration and approval. Once approved they will be sent
over to CFO Kazanovicz, to be included in the Total CIP requested from the Town as part of the FY2024
Budget preparation.




Recommended Motion.....to approve the FY2024 and FY2028 Capital Improvement Plans as
presented by the Business Manager and to forward them to the Town for inclusion as part of the
FY2024 CIP Budget.

Adjournment

Roll Call Vote:



MINUTES

SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETING

Location: 5 West Street, School Committee Room

September 21, 2022 6:00 p.m,

In Attendance: Absent Zoom
Jessie Harrington Gail Holloway Unable to connect to Zoom

Meghan McCrillis

Brooke Wrenn

Samantha Raphael

Beth Chamberland, Superintendent

Alan Keller, Assistant Superintendent

Cecelia Wirzbicki, Business Manager

Brooke Beverly, Bryn Mawr Principal

Jenna Bailey, Bryn Mawr Art Teacher

Libby Dumais, High School French Teacher

Nicole Vecchio, High School Spanish Teacher

Euridices, ALonso & Emmanuel DeJesus - 11 Lorna Drive Auburn
Cathleen Rivard, Maggie & Morgan Dunphy - 325 Oxford Street North Auburn
Melissa, Paul & Beatria Tomasello - 17 Wellman Street Auburn

Sarah & Evelyn Schofield - 266 Bryn Mawr Ave Auburn

CALL TO ORDER:

Jessie Harrington called the meeting to order at 6:19 p.m.



Meghan McCrillis read out loud the Auburn Public School Vision & Commitment.

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS: None
SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS:

Dr. Chamberland recognized the passing of two former Auburn Public Schools teachers.

Mary Nowaszcki, worked in the district for 34 years. She was a 7th grade Social Studies
teacher.

Glen Williams spent his career in Auburn in the Auburn High School Art Department before
retiring in 1999.

A moment of silence was held. .

Minutes: 9/7/22
Jessie Harrington entertained a motion to accept the minutes from 9/7/22.

Brooke Wrenn a motion to accept the minutes from 9/7/22. Samantha Raphael seconded the
motion, it was unanimously approved.

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES REPORT: None

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT:

Spotlight on Students

Dr. Chamberland introduced Bryn Mawr Elementary School Art teacher Jenna Bailey,
along with 6 students Alonzo & Emmanuel De Jesus, Maggie & Morgan Dunphy,
Beatria Tomasello and Evelyn Schofield shared their experience with Dot Day,
celebrated on September 15th. The Dot is the story of a caring teacher who dares a
doubting student to trust in her own abilities by being brave enough to “make her mark”.
What begins with a small dot on a piece of paper becomes a breakthrough in
confidence and courage, igniting a journey of self-discovery and sharing, which has
gone on to inspire countless children and adults around the globe.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

School Safety




Dr. Chamberland:.The District Safety Team met on Thursday, September 15th to review
the protocols for the October 7th Active Shooter Drills that will take place at each school
building. The goal was to make this experience meaningful while also maintaining a
sense of security and calm for all involved. Details of the drill will be shared with all staff
prior to that day to ensure everyone feels supported and confident in the process with
the goal being to minimize any fear or anxiety on the part of staff. There will be a debrief
session at each school following the drill with the Safety Team so that all questions are
answered. The District Safety Team also discussed the protocol for the drills that will
take place with students at Auburn Middle School and Auburn High School. Parents
and students will be notified in advance of what to expect during these drills. Again, the
drills are being crafted to ensure everyone feels supported and confident in the process
with the goal being to minimize any fear or anxiety on the part of students and staff. All
schools have conducted their first fire drill under the supervision of the Auburn Fire
Department and all went well.

COVID 19 Update

Dr. Chamberland: COVID 19 remains a factor in our schools, although much less so
than in the past two years. She continues to report COVID 19 positive cases twice each
week. Nurses track COVID 19 positive cases and families of any classroom in which
there are 3 or more cases within a short time frame, are notified to monitor their child for
symptoms and to keep their child home if they do not feel well. We did have a trend of
positive cases at Bryn Mawr School last week but that seemingly has gone back to
being in line with the other schools. Regular cleanings continue to take place in all
buildings, students are encouraged to wash hands and use sanitizer and we are
adjusting to the ‘new normal’ in relation to COVID 19. Dr. Chamberland is in constant
contact with the Board of Health and DESE. She said she continues to be thankful for
the efforts of our nursing team. They are conducting in-school testing of symptomatic
staff and students, another tool in our efforts to keep everyone healthy.

Meghan McCirillis asked: How will parents be notified of more than 3 positives in a
classroom?
Dr. Chamberland : From the principals.

Brooke Wrenn asked: How is the substitute teacher list?
Dr. Chamberland: Not enough, but Alan Keller is working hard to increase the list and
get the subs into the buildings.

Alan Keller: Interviewing subs on Zoom and working hard to add more. Alan stated that
since the beginning of the school year he has added 8 additional subs to the list.

Busing

Dr. Chamberland: Busing has gone well thus far this school year. The Administrative
Assistants in our main office, Mandy Williams, Caitlin O’Neill and Kelley Ackley did a
remarkable job creating bus lists, distributing bus passes and monitoring bus ridership.
AA Transportation has collaborated with us on revising routes and also monitoring
ridership. As of September 15th, we had 41 students on a waiting list. This was done



to allow bus drivers to complete actual counts of riders. All students have now been
assigned to a bus and families have been notified of such. We will continue to monitor
ridership throughout the school year.

Consolidated Human Resource Review

Dr. Chamberland: Early last school year, we began a collaboration with the leadership of
the Town of Auburn related to Human Resources. The Town, using a grant, was able to
facilitate the completion of a study on the Human Resource roles and practices by The
Edward J. Collins Center for Public Management at UMASS Boston for both the Town
and The School Department. This study required the gathering of a great deal of
information along with a number of interviews with leadership and staff of both the Town
and the School Department. This information was shared with the School Committee
last school year and the Committee was in support of this process. On Monday,
September 12, 2022, the final report was shared with the Town Selectboard. This report
recommends that the Assistant Town Manager, to be hired in January upon the
retirement of Julie Jacobson and the assumption of Ed Kazanovicz as the Town
Manager, have experience in Human Resources along with the appropriate Human
Resource certifications. Also recommended is the addition of a Human Resource
Generalist to assist in the day to day work of Human Resources. These changes would
help to improve efficiencies, ensure that all legal requirements related to Human
Resources were met, concentrate many Human Resource activities into one office and
provide overall streamlined Human Resource functions to the Town.

Strategic Plan Update

Dr. Chamberland: Two Superintendent Listening sessions have been scheduled for
families to discuss updates to the Strategic Plan. The sessions will be held at Auburn
Middle School on Monday, October 3, 2022 at 6:30PM for families of students at Auburn
High School and Auburn Middle Schools and at Pakachoag School on Tuesday,
October 11, 2022 at 6:30PM for elementary and preschool families. Dr. Chamberland
will be sharing the form with families on a regular basis leading up to the sessions to
encourage families to attend. Dr. Chamberland will present the survey questions that
will be asked of students at SWIS, AMS and AHS as part of my ‘listening tour’ at a later
date. Compiled results will be shared when student and staff listening sessions are
complete.

Jessie Harrington asked: Will the sessions be recorded or will minutes be taken?
Dr. Chamberland: Minutes will be taken.

Green Dome Update

Dr. Chamberland: Mr. Fahey and Dr. Chamberland met with 3 representatives of the
Green Dome Committee, on September 13, 2022. Dr. Chamberland was pleased to
inform the Committee that they have obtained a local, licensed contractor, Murphy’s
Home Repair, to remove the lead paint and repair the Green Dome located on Auburn
Street outside of the baseball field. Repairs will commence mid-October and should
take 7-10 days. A second phase may follow at a later date for the installation of a fence




around the Green Dome area. All necessary approvals have been obtained from the
Town as well. All of this work is being funded by donations received by the Green
Dome Committee.

NEW BUSINESS:

Auburn High School Graduation Date

Dr. Chamberland: The Leadership at Auburn High School is asking the Committee to
change the 2023 Graduation Date from June 9, 2023 to June 2, 2023 at 7:00pm on
Memorial Field. This is being done to create a less hectic and more enjoyable
experience for our graduating seniors and for staff. In addition to the change in the date
of graduation, a number of changes to senior events will also happen to spread out the
graduation events in a more manageable manner.

Samantha Raphael asked: When is the last day of school for Seniors?
Alan Keller: May 26th

Recommended Motion....to approve the date change of the Auburn High School
Graduation from June 9, 2023 to June 2, 2023.

Jessie Harrington entertained a motion to approve the date change of the Auburn High
School Graduation from June 9, 2023 to June 2, 2023.

Samantha Raphael made a motion to approve the date change of the Auburn High School
Graduation from June 9, 2023 to June 2, 2023. Brooke Wrenn seconded the motion, it was
unanimously approved.

Auburn High School Field Trip to Quebec

Dr.Chamberland: In the packet was a request from Elizabeth Dumais at Auburn High
School to take up to 50 Auburn High School students to Quebec City, Quebec Canada.
This is a trip that took place for many years prior to COVID 19. The goal of this trip is to
immerse students in French-Canadian culture. More details are in your packet.

Libby Dumais expanded on the information in the packet and was available for
questions.

Jessie Harrington: Do kids know they need a passport to attend this trip?
Libby Dumais: Yes, but we will also hold a family meeting and go over all the information
again. As of right now you have to be fully vaccinated to enter Canada. But that is set to

expire on 9/30/22, we will be paying attention to that as well.

Brooke Wrenn: How many chaperones?



Libby Dumais: 35 students - 4 chaperones, 40+ - 5 chaperones

Dr. Chamberland: Should have a COID plan and check with the travel company
regarding insurance if the Canadian border closes.

Megan McCirillis added: Check to see if COVID swaps are required to re-enter.

Recommended Motion....to approve the Auburn High School Field Trip to Quebec,
January 26-29, 2023.

Jessie Harrington entertained a motion to approve the Auburn High School Field Trip to
Quebec, January 26-29, 2023.

Meghan McCirillis made a motion to approve the Auburn High School Field Trip to Quebec,
January 26-29, 2023. Samantha Raphael seconded the motion, it was unanimously approved.

The Reserve at Ashworth Hill

Dr. Chamberland: Presented to the Committee was information related to The Reserve
at Ashworth Hill. This is a housing development proposed by Eastland Partners to
construct 324 units of housing off Blaker Street. The Select Board voted to support this
initiative on October 28, 2019. The pandemic and supply chain issues delayed the
project and they have now come forward with an updated timeline for completion. At
the time of this proposal, it was estimated that the public schools could potentially be
impacted by the enrollment of 67 school aged children. Dr. Chamberland also included
a historical overview of enroliment by grade.

Jessie Harrington: This project could potentially put a strain on our district, especially at
the Middle School. Our needs might be different now since the original conversation,
can that be revisited?

Dr. Chamberland: Stated she would talk to Julie Jacobson, but did not think there was
room for change. She said we would need to think about space issues, buses and staff.

Jessie Harrington: Modules at the Middle School?

Dr. Chamberland: Potentially.

Meghan McCirillis:Bryn Mawr students aren't able to leave the classrooms for Art due to
space constraints, which could become widespread. Another question for Julie
Jacobson, can some of the money the project is allocating for the 4th of July and the

Summer Concert Series, can it come our way?

Brooke Wrenn: Any idea how many updates we will receive?



Dr. Chamberland: No, not at this time.

TEACHING AND LEARNING REPORT:

Alan Keller: In addition to the Active Shooter Drills on October 7, the staff at each of our
schools will participate in the first of two sessions on Anti-Bias training, the goal of which
is ensuring a safe and supportive environment for all students and staff. This training
session has been designed for us and will be facilitated by the Anti Defamation League
(ADL) based on feedback from the Equity Audit, goal areas in our Strategic Plan, and
feedback from our administrative team. The sessions will establish a shared
understanding of the different forms of bias (e.g., explicit, implicit, racism, anti-semitism,
sexism, etc), develop effective bias incident intervention and prevention strategies and
identify actionable steps to facilitate more inclusive and equitable classrooms and
school communities.

BUSINESS/FINANCIAL REPORT: None

Jessie Harrington entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Samantha Raphael made the motion to adjourn for the evening. Brooke Wrenn seconded the
motion, it was unanimously approved.

Meeting adjourned at 7:24pm.

Adjournment
Roll Call Vote

Respectfully submitted,
Mandy Williams

Recording Secretary

Referenced Documents:

Meeting Minutes for 9/7/22
Consolidated Human Resource Review
Auburn High School Field Trip to Quehec
The Reserve at Ashworth Hill

Historical Overview of enrollment by grade






SWIS Student Survey

Thank you for answering a few questions about your time at Swanson Road Intermediate School.
As Superintendent of Schools, | am working with Principals, Assistant Principals and teachers to
help make the Auburn Public Schools a place where everyone feels like they belong, they feel
accepted for who they are and each student receives all they need to be successful. Your answers
to these questions will help us to do that so it is important for you to be thoughtful and honest.

* Required

1. Ifeellike | belong at my school. *

Mark only one oval.

Not at all ) All the time

2. |feel like | am accepted at my school for who | am. *

Mark only one oval.

Never ) L) Always

3. The best thing about my school is: *



4.

If | could make my school better, | would: *

There is a positive, caring adult in my school who knows me and | can go to them if |
need help.

Mark only one oval.

*

( )Yes
(_JNo
Share something your teacher(s), your principals or the Superintendent could do to *

make school better for you.

If you would like to be included in a group discussion with the Superintendent of Schools
to share your thoughts about your school and how we can make it better, please enter
your first and last name on the line below. The group discussion will take place during the
school day for about 45 minutes. Thank you!

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google.

Google Forms



AHS & AMS Student Survey

Thank you for answering a few questions about your experience so far this year at Auburn High
School. As Superintendent of Schools, | am working with Principals, Assistant Principals and
teachers to help make the Auburn Public Schools a place where everyone feels like they belong,
they feel accepted for who they are and each student receives all they need to be successful. Your

answers to these questions will help us to do that so it is important for you to be thoughtful and
honest.

* Required
1. Email *
2. |feel like | belong at my school. *

3.

Mark only one oval.

Not at all _ ' All the time

| feel like | am accepted at my school for who | am. *

Mark only one oval.

Never ) () Always



4.

5.

The best thing about my school is: *

If I could make my school better, | would: *

There is a positive, caring adult in my school who knows me and | can go to them if |
need help.

Mark only one oval.
() Yes
C :) No

Share something your teacher(s) could do to make school better for you. *

*



8. Share something your principal or assistant principal could do to make school better for *

you.

9. To help all students in my school, the Superintendent should: *

10. If you would like to be included in a group discussion with the Superintendent of Schools
to share your thoughts about your school and how we can make it better, please enter
your first and last name on the line below. The group discussion will take place during
the school day for about 45 minutes. Thank you!

This content is neither created nor endorsed by Google.

Google Forms






2c¢0z/S/01

98¢ L S v Zl 4 Ll 9l 8 A 6 S kL 6LL g9 sjuswyjjoiuz
MaN
79 4} Ll 8 0L L 9 L4 sjuapnjg asioyd |ooyssg
Gl L [4 T S 2 [4 I sjuspnis aoo
(A4 A nv Zl (A oL 6 8 L 9 1 14 5 Z L M M-aid
SJUapN}S I2I0YD [OOYIS SIpN|oul [BI0L .
609z L1L0OZ 90re 6002
ogsz  910¢ G9gZ 8002 04S¢ =[00YIsSald/M BSYL jejol
¥sve  GLOZ g6z  100¢C
0457 2202 €98 ¥l0Z vEET 9002 8¢/ ‘lo0yds YbiH
L1ST 1202 Liver €L0Z 6S€7  S00¢
81SZ 0¢0Z okeTc Z2L0Z B6SET +00<¢ £59 * 100U2s 3IPPIN
9€97 6102 6S€C  LLOC TIve  €00¢
£L€97 8L0C o0igZ  0LOC 8vrz 2002 LLL jooyasald,y. 890} : Mgquswisig
/49 9/d| 9/g| 9/9 9/d o/d /g 9/ga| 9/4 9/a 9/d| 9/9 o/d o/d o/d
iy 0152 | L.S¢C SIV.LIOL
. LLL 601 LLL
8¥/E9 Said SHY
6 0.2 192 68 ¥8 6
yrISt| SE/evr| 6v/8r ngd
pL- |2¥2 952 68 9. 2L
ov/Sy| 8E/8E| EEiT Mvd
GlL- |9sS L1S LLL |S6L 06l
¥8/.8| 88/.0L| 66/L6 SIMS
14 €59 69 1 ¥4 3% 6¢cc
cOoL/LLL B6/egLL [2LLILLL SNV
L 8L LeL | €L |26l PLL | PLL |S8)
G/2 | 68/€0L | 28/26| £6/1L8| 60L/9L SHY
s|ejo] S|eioL
Qg ezoz  Lzoe W ZL Ll oL 6 8 L 9 S 4 € G L A H-2id
€20¢ "1 4=°q0100 3AvH9 ANV T00HIS INIWTIOENT V21440

spasnyoessely ‘wnany STOOHIS 2119Nd NY¥NgnNy







F‘ Chamberland, Elizabeth <echamberland@auburn.k12.ma.us>

izﬁalll. =

Equity in Special Education Indicators and Initiatives Status-School Year 2022-2023

1 message

Coonley, Brian (DOE) <brian.coonley@state.ma.us> Thu, Sep 22, 2022 at 1:51 PM
To: "echamberland@auburn.k12.ma.us" <echamberland@auburn.k12.ma.us>

Superintendent Elizabeth Chamberland

5 West Street

Auburn, MA 01501
Dear Superintendent Elizabeth Chamberland:

The Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (MA DESE) and local education agencies (LEAs) across
the Commonwealth have made it their priority to increase educational access and equity for our most marginalized
students, especially students with disabilities. This priority necessitates that we identify inequities in special
education and respond to them. As part of this work, MA DESE implements multiple initiatives.

The purpose of this email is to notify your LEA of ifs status across these initiatives and indicators for the 2022-
2023 school year. It is recommended all district staff carefully read all information in this email as if flagged or
identified there will be required actions of the LEA.

Information about your LEA’s status for cach initiative and indicator are included in the table below.

Auburn’s Status for Initiatives and Indicators

Initiatives and Indicators Status Area of Identification/Flag
Indicator 4A Not Identified

Indicator 4B Not Identified

Indicator 9 Not Flagged

Indicator 10 Not Flagged

Significant Disproportionality | Not Identified or At-Risk

More information on Significant Disproportionality and other equity in special education initiatives and indicators
is available here: https://www.doe.mass.edu/sfs/discipline/indicators-4-9-10.docx.



MA DESE is working to create a system of technical assistance, professional development, and other supports that
is customized for each LEA. This will include district level supports, professional learning communities (PLCs),
and online trainings.

For LEAs identified or at-risk of significant disproportionality in special education and LEAs flagged or
identified for indicators 4, 9 and 10, you will receive an email with more information about requirements,
upcoming technical assistance opportunities and PLC groups.

More Information on Indicators and Initiatives

Significant Disproportionality in Special Education: IDEA requires states to measure whether students from
certain racial and ethnic groups are disproportionately receiving special education services in specific disability
categories, whether they are disproportionately placed in certain settings, and whether they are disproportionately
receiving certain kinds of disciplinary removals. IDEA requires different calculations for this measurement than it
requires for Indicators 9, 10, 4A, and 4B.

LEAs identified with significant disproportionality are required to complete the following:
1. Review and, if appropriate, revise policies, practices, and procedures (PPPs)
2. Publicly report revisions of PPPs

3. Reserve 15% of IDEA funds for comprehensive coordinated early intervening services (CCEIS) to address
factors contributing to the significant disproportionality. Funds must be used for students ages 3 through grade 12
and for students with or without disabilities.

4. Identify and address factors that may be contributing to significant disproportionality

5. Submit action plans to DESE for approval in spring 2023. More information on these action plans will be
included in follow-up email.

Though at-risk LEAs are not required to take specific action right now, they may wish to assess their policies,
practices, and procedures for reasons that may have contributed to the LEA’s high risk ratios or take additional steps
to examine the data that suggest disproportionality.

Any LEA at-risk for future identification with or identified with significant disproportionality is invited to
participate in the MA DESE provided technical assistance and professional development.

Data for Significant Disproportionality in Special Education is made available to all LEAs, no matter their status
for this initiative, in an Edwin report: SP301 Significant Disproportionality in Special Education. This report can
be found in Edwin Analytics in the Security Portal: https://gateway.edu.state.ma.us/.

More information on Significant Disproportionality is available here:
e What is Significant Disproportionality Quick Reference Guide

e Significant Disproportionality Fiscal Implications Reference Guide



e MA DESE Significant Disproportionality Website

Indicators 4A and 4B are required by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and, through data
analysis, measure whether students with IEPs, overall and from certain racial and ethnic groups, are suspended or
expelled in LEAs more than students with IEPs statewide. Through this data analysis LEAs are identified for
indicators 4A and 4B.

All LEAs identified by way of this data analysis are required to identify and address factors that may be
contributing to disproportionality. LEAs found to have policies, practices, and procedures (PPPs) that lead to this
discrepancy are required to write a corrective action plan which must be completed by the next reporting year.

Any LEA identified under indicators 4A and 4B are invited to participate in MA DESE provided technical
assistance and professional development

More information on Indicator 4 is available here: https://www.doe.mass.edu/sfs/discipline/indicators-4-9-10.docx.

Indicators 9 and 10 are required by IDEA and, through data analysis, measure whether students from certain racial
and ethnic groups are disproportionately receiving special education services in LEAs, both in general and in
specific disability categories, because they were inappropriately determined eligible for special education services.
Through this data analysis LEAs are flagged for indicators 9 and 10.

All LEAs flagged by way of this data analysis are required to send PPPs to MA DESE. IDEA requires MA DESE
to determine whether the disproportionate representation is due to inappropriate identification of students for
special education services by reviewing the LEA’s PPPs regarding disability determination and eligibility
determination. If it is determined that PPPs are inappropriate and are contributing to the disproportionate
representation, corrective action procedures are required.

Any LEA flagged under indicators 9 or 10 are invited to participate in MA DESE provided technical assistance and
professional development.

More information on Indicators 9 and 10 is available here: https://www.doe.mass.edu/sfs/discipline/indicators-4-9-
10.docx.

Please contact Brian Coonley of the MA DESE’s Special Education Planning & Policy Office at 781-338-3374 or
brian.coonley@mass.gov with questions. He will be your primary point of contact on this matter.

Thank you, in advance, for your shared attention to this important work. We look forward to our continued
partnership.

Best Regards,



Wit JLL_

Russell D. Johnston, PhD

Senior Associate Commissioner

CC:  Gregory Walton, Special Education Director
Cecelia Wirzbicki, District Business Leader
Elizabeth Chamberland, Curriculum Director
Brian Coonley, Special Education Equity and Inclusion Specialist

Jamie Camacho, Director, Office of Special Education Planning and Policy



NOILVONdH

AdYANODTS ANV AYVINIWITI fa
40 LNBWL¥VIRG SLL35AKIVISYH Moy

*S92IAIDS UOIIRINPS [e1ads 104 31q1S119 paulwidlap Ajdjelidosddeul
a1am Asyl asnedaq ‘saliog8alen Alljigesip o1199ds ul pue |elauas ul Yjoq ‘seaiAas uoileanpa |eiaads Suiniedal Ajgleuoijiodoudsip
ate sdnoJg J1uy3ls pue |eIoRJ UIRIID WO) SJUSPNIS JaYIBYM ainseaul pue y3q| Aq paJinbad ale QT pue g S101e3ipuj|

‘SPIMILELS sd3|
Y1M SIUSPNIS UBYY 2J0W SI011SIP Ul paj|adxs Jo pspuadsns aJe ‘sdnoJd o1uyle pue [e1del UleLiad Wod) pue ‘||eJ3A0 ‘Sd3| Yyim
Sjuapnis Jaylaym anseawl pue (y3ql) Py uoireanp3 saiijigesiq Yim sjenpiaipul 3yl Aq patinbal ale gy pue yj si101edipu]

‘g pue ‘vt ‘0T ‘6 S103e31pU| J0j SaJInbal 11 uBy] JUBWIINSE3W S|Y] JO) SUOIIR|ND|ED JUBJBHIP Salinbal y3Q| "S|eAowas
Aseundiasip jo spuny uienaa 3uial@dad Aj@leuoiliodoldsip ade Asyi Jayisym pue ‘ssullles ulelad ul padeld Ajajeuoiziodoldsip
ale Aay3 Jayiaym ‘sarioSaied Alljigesip o13133ds ul S321AISS UoI1eanpa |e12ads Suinedad Ajajeuoiiodoldsip sue

sdnoJ8 21Uy3a pue [e[DeJ UIBLISD WOJ) SIUBPNIS JaYlaym ainseaw 03 sa3els sadinbal y3ql :Ajljeuoirjsodoudsiqg jueaiylusis

‘g pUe Y SJ101B2IpY|
v3Q| 03 asuodsal u] osyp pue zzz Je1dey) me| aje1s 03 asuodsal ul ‘(snieis 43| pue Aldiuyis/adel Aq seies ajeuoiodoadsip
Se |[9M Se) sjuapnis [[e J0j uoisindxa pue uoisuadsns 10 s81eJ 8dnpaJ 01 dAeHUL 3534 e st auljdidsig Supjuiylay

OT26
ani

ar3 vy
anI

00060

‘uoneanpy |eads ul uoizeuasaiday ajeuoiodoldsiq 0T JOIEIIPU| pue § JOIEJIPU]

pue UuoI1ednp3 |e1adsg ul auldidsiqg ul AJuedaJds|g IUBdIUSIS 7 SI0JBJIpU| e

{Goneonpy |epads ul Ayl

BUOIH0dOJdSI[ JUBDYIUDIS e

‘SUSIQ BUD[UIYIoY e

:S3AIIRINUI JUBIDHIP JNOJ UO S3SNI0J JUSWNI0P SIYL

‘spoddns juawdojaaap

[eucissajoid pue 3oUR}SISSE |BDIUYIRY PUE ‘S955220.4d UO0I3RIIIFUSPI JILIISIP ‘SUOIIRINI[ED Ul SDIUBIBYIP BY3 sule|dxa Juswno0p Siy] ‘sallljigesip
UHM SIU3pPNIS 01 93.[3J 383 SaAlellul ALNba 3530 WIN JUSUS4IP INOGE UCIIeIIIIR|D pUB UoljeLUIosul 2pIALd 03 S1JU2UINJ0p Syl Jo asodind sy

0T pue ‘g ‘¢ saojedipuj pue ‘Ajjeuornsodoadsiqg Juedyiusgis ‘auijdiasig Sunjuiyiay

170z AMenugad :paiepdn 1seq






juswaAoldwl/sa109s
SYIIN ‘diysiapes)] J1ay} uo asuanjiul Jog sjediounad jo Asnuns ieak jo
pua ‘sbunjeaw jediouiid pajuawnaop ‘suonen|eas jedioulld T93uspiAg

sajdiound Qn jo
22uapiA3 uo siseydwas Buioeld ajiym Bujuwies] pue Buiyoses) paaiesqo
10 suoissnasip eiA sjedisund jo juswdojaaap diysiapes Tjnsey

sjedisunid yym s)siA woolsse|d Ajyjuoly :UOHIY

‘sSjuapnis 113 pue spuapnls uoesnpa |eroads 10 spualy

panosduwi 104 pazhjeue aq |im sdnoibBgns 1oy ejep SYOIN "SAaAins e .
juapnis Aq ainseaw Se JuajU0d WooIsse|d ul Juswabebua Jusapnis Feo sog Bujwseryjuepnig
aseaJoul [im an Jo sajdiound ayj jo uonesiddy "yoea ui sajdiouud
-1anN pappaquia Yy}im suossa| ¢ Jses| Je 2ouaiadxa [[im sjuapnis
IIY "yoeod Jan paseq Buipjing 2y} yym suoissas Bunssw Ajnoey
Z yum Buoje 1eah jooyas siy} Buiuiesy Jo sAep |nj om} u) ajedioied
1M HeIS [V "Zl-Mald swooisse|a ||e ul Buiuiea Joj ubisaq |esiaAiun
10 sajdiounid ayj jo uonjejuswajduul aAljoe syl ajel|ioed J[eoH

‘Buiuies) uapnis

pue ‘ssauanioaya Jojeonps ‘eousuuopad |euoleziuefio anoidwl pue s|eob joulsip pue [0oyos
Wwojul 0} —ejep yimolb pue s)nsal JuswsSasse [00yos pue Jolsip ‘ajels Buipnjaui—Bulures)
Juapnis O} PaJe|a) 30UaPIAS JO saainos ajdinw sas :Bunjely uoisioeg pawlolu|-eleq 3|

‘sSaUIpeal JO S[9A3] puUe ‘s}salajul ‘spaau ‘sajfls Buluies| 8siSAIp SJEPOWWOOoE
0} pazi|euosiad aie pue ‘suapnis ||g abebua “yJom pue Joye jo Alenb pue Jusjuod
Buipiebal suoneioadxs ybly 10s)i81 sBumss (|12 ul ssoljoeld Jey) ssunsug (uouonlisu| g-|

papeaax3
BN

ssalbold
jueayjubis

ssaifoid

awos

93 JON PIQ

uonduoasaqg (s)io3e01pU| SNDO4 s|eos

‘diysiapeaT sanesIuwpyY
SAI}09LT 10} SPIEPURIS SU} WO JOJeDIpU| SN90j dUO Jses] Je 0} paubije pue | HyINS o9 PINoys s|2os) 'sjeob juswanoidul
1oUISIp N0y 0} oM} pue ‘[ech sonoeid [euoissajold 2uo ‘|20B Bulules| Juspn)s Suo JSE3| JB ALJUSp! JSnWw sjuspusjuladng

NOLLVONdd

AEYVONDOAS ¥ E._.'mu..u._.w

-

€202-220¢ ‘puepaquey) yieg

S|eon) 92ueWIOLdd S Juspuduadng




SUOIJo. 3A0qE JO uona|dwod pajuswWnNoIo( BoUspIAg

*(senpiqisuodsal jeuoissajoud

pue ‘sjuawalinbal uoneanpa [e1oads ‘suaboyjed aulog poo|q ‘asn uad
-1d3 pue g3y ‘BuiAjng ‘Juieysal Joj Buluiel] Jea i ayj jo Buluuibeg
JOLI3SI(] ‘SSaUBIBME JNESSE [BNXSS 10} HONONT uoijuaAald sploing
10} Bulurel] uosep) “Ajaies o} pajejal pajejdwoa aq [jim Buiules

2UIjUO pue S|l 19100YUS JAIY ‘S|IUQ 2414 aoe(d ul ase sjod030.1d
Ajajes ainsua 0} |[00YIS YIBd 0} SHSIA Pa2UNOUUBUN }ONPUOD [[IM Wea ]
fyaeg Jo13s1g "seanjoeid ajepdn pue maiAail 0] aoe|d a)e} ||IM SWwes ]
f3ajes |00y pue JoLISIQ Y3 yjoq jo sbunasw Ajyjuoly UoNdY

*3JES lB)S
pue sjuapnjs deay 03 @oejd ul aie $|020304d AJajesS ||B 2ANSUS 0} SWea |
f1ajeg paseg |00YyaS pue weea] AJajes Jou3sid 2yl 9INJRSUIRY [E0D

'SpooU 21005 pue ‘[2Uoijowsa ‘yyeay ‘Alajes jo abuel ||ni B SSaIppe 0} swasAs |euolelado
pue ‘ssuno. ‘'ssinpacold ‘sueid sajoeys sanoaxa pue sdojansq JUSWUOIAUT Y-

a-ie vl

L g0
juswanosduwi] JoM3sIg

‘ssaiboid
10} ZZ0Z 10 1snbny Jo sjjnsal Aeains ayj o} patedwod spodai 30alIp
Aw 031 fanuns Jesh jo pus ‘welboid 1o uoilajdwoo Jo) sddd @ouspIng

"J8uUIge) sjuspuslulladng pue sjedisund sy} yum saayoesd
diysiapes| 0} paulea] Juajuod buiAjdde ‘pusiy [e21112 B SE YoR0)
dISN Aw ssaooe Aldenbal ‘sucisses dISN peInpayas [[e puapy ‘uonoy

Juapuajuuadng e se s|iys diysiapes] Aw dojaasp o)
weaboid uononpuj Juapuajuuadng maN oy} ul Ajjn} sjedidiped [0S

*g2110B4d UMO Jay Jo sIy

ul SIDIABYS] 858U} S|[9pol| "synsal paacidwl sasiyoe pue aojoeld ydepe Asnonunuod o} Aioay)
pue ‘saonoeld }s2q ‘YoseaSal JUSLIND ‘BIEP JUSPN]S 3SN puE 821joId Jiay} Inoge aAijosyal

242 SIaqUIBLU LS YDIUM Ul S1n3no e sainunu pue sdojanaq :Buiuies snonuijuod a-Al

a-Al

[eoo
2913014 [BUOISSAJ0Id




1els ypm pazijian sjulod uoissnasip pue

sejoiue ‘sbuieaw |ediosund Apjaam-1q ayj wolj sepuabe ayj uo pajou
se uoisnjou| ® fInb3 ‘AlsiaAig 03 pajejal senssi Buipiebal sjediound
yym suoissnasip buiobugQ ‘uonajdwos Buluies 10y sdad :23UspiAg

selq 0} pajejal sjuapiaul [ooyas uo sjediound ypm

SUOISSNISIP 3)e}i|10e4 "}JBIS pue ‘Saljie) ‘Sjuapnis YIM Suoissag
Buruajsi Jonpuoy “suoissalbbe-oloiw pue asuajadwod [einyng

uo anbea uonewejag-nuy ay} wouy Buiuiesy ay} ui eddiued TUoONIY

*sjooyas ino u) Buibuojaq Jo asuas e |93} JJB)S pue SjU3apnIs |2 18y}
ainsu? 0} pue sjooyas e ul buibuojaq pue Ajajes 10 ajew|d e ajeald
0} suoissalbbe oJoiw pue ssuajedwod |ein3|nd uo anbea] uonewejaq
-njuy ayj wouy Buluresy yum yeis jje goddns pue apiaoid [E05

‘pajoadsal ale sabus|eyo pue 'syiBuays ‘'sanuapl ‘spunolsbyoeq
(SIUBPN}S YoIym Ul JusLUCIIAUS asiaalp A||Binyno B Ul Ajlanijoays 1oBIalUIl 0] SJUSpmS
pue siagusw yejs sjqeus saonoeid pue saioljod jey) saunsuz :Aousioyold [eamyng g-Al

g-Al

€leon
jusweaosdwy Jo1s1q

sBuneauw [edisunid Apjeam-iq ay) woly sepusbe

2@y} uo pajou se uoisnjau| pue ‘Ajinb3 ‘AjisiaA1q 0} pajejal sanssi
Buipsebaus sjediounid yjm suoissnasip Guiobup ‘Buipjing diysuonejsy
Jo Buijapojy ‘sawoano dnoib uoissnasig Jels pue Juspnig
‘S8wo9InQ uolssag Buluaysi ‘Yeiq |eulq uejd s16ajeng SIUSPIAT

sBunjeaw jauigen

pue jediduLd ‘diysiapesan Joj ainjoniys Bunjesw aAijeloqe||o2 e azijin
‘saljiwe) ym suoijesiunwiwod burobuo ‘sjuspnls pue yejs ‘saljiwe]
ypm suoissas Bulualsi| ‘ssasold ajepdn ueld sibajelig TUonoy

yoans Buijepow Aq Bundasoe pue aAisnjaul si Jeys 3ou3sIqg 8yl
SS0JOB pUB S|O0Y9IS UIYJIM UOIJRIoqR]|0 JO 3)ewl|d e Buyeaning T[eon

“JBUUBW JusioIye pue
‘anljoeys ‘'s|gelnba ue ul Suia2u02 AJUNWILLICD PUB AjILUE) S3SSAIPPY SUJa2uo)) AjlWed ad-11l

"AJUNWWOD pue 'Jousip
|00YDS ‘WOOISSE|D DU} JO SSBUSADSLS SU) 0} SINQUILOD UBD puB AUUNLILIOS [00UDS pue
WOOJSSBIO By} JO SISQLISLL SWIOO[aM BIB SBI|IWE) (|2 18U} Sainsua Ajlpnloy uswebebug w-|||

a2 v-n

¢ leo
juawanosduwii Joisiq







T

%0"

%9°9¢

%508
%9°56
%Lt

%0"

%t " 09
%S 6L
%0 5%
%0~

%5 L6
%0°L6

ofed

00'000°T

00700T
00000"T
00
00052

b 09F" Z
007052
00°05¢

6T 82b°2-
8L
0070007
0 vev‘z-
2z 9€-

TS #55°S
$67882°91
12°082E2
92699~
0479909
0§ OTT T~

6/°8€0'Y
00°000°7
25 9E£ 62
2072526
00°T68 “TS

OL vEF'E

13290138
F1FVILvAY

og*

0y 9gt 69T
£0°7£9°96
807£696T
ST"T80' 278
00°6£9'2¢

0g°
o’
S¥ 0T 'R0L
Qv bbb
05°229'651

00"

00-

gk 8Fb
50" Z¥E
00"

90" ZES'EE
£E9°¥8E°08

SAINTAFNNING

gr-29z°¢
ST ST6°201
QS 9rpS

12°T9%'T
g

65°02Z°¢1
pETBER Q7
05-49¢°T2

00°
00056
2ETLvET
9472t
00"
¢5°B56 €
£7°T86°67

Q2ZON3dX3 LA

200°T

00T
Q00‘T
000°T

00s°‘s
000°2
TTLI0ST
s 212
956°ZE

005'L
SLS°Y
008'¥
005'T
005
066" 0F
008 °£TT

1390n3
J35IAZH

COoOLOoOOoO0OoOCOCQOaSo0

LOOoQD

GOODOQOO

SLWLS LAY
/SdANYYL

000'T

00T
000'T
006°1

QUT'eL

005°1
IS8T
008°¥%
60S T
005

066 ‘0%
008 et

d0UddY

TWNIDIHO

prgpaiLb
DAL LMD

10T wedbiods
25N

9ELT TLOL/SO/UL paarsauab aoday

Yl NAYE ‘S30081X31 £ESS

TEOF7IT

vaL "gWI3Y FAOVIIIW 0TS
Wyd90ud THOS Y3L3v TZSS
NAYS S3ITddNS Lyvy QTS

NAME S3IT1ddNSs #0585 VLSS

‘WYSSYTD *S3TddNS OTSS
NOTIVINGT TWIISAHd  OFFS
SITIdNS JISAN  SZRS

A¥Y SONZJILS ¥3IHM1D 6ZTS
GNIJILS ADOIONHDAL 821¢
¥O0Ed TOOHDS d3ldy  S2TS
I9YVHD NI ¥3HOYIL 97TS

SY TYNOTILNYLSNI  6/02TS
ANS/SATAYIVS vIL  0707TS
NA¥E S1SITVIDALS OSTLIS
SV IVNQILONYLSNI  6/TTIS
SSAF0UdVEYd HivW Z/TTIS
TIVI¥S | SEIHIVAL  OZTTIS
H¥OLNL T3 Q0TS

TE0ETIT
TSOEZIT
TSOEZIT
180%8¢TL
TS0EZIT
T50ECTL
TS0L7TT
TSOEZIT
TSOETTT
TSOETIT
TSOETIT
TE0ETIT
TS0ECIT
TS0ETIT
TS0ETLT
TSDEITT
1S0EZTT
TS0ELTT

ISSY "WLSNI d3d5 6JO7LS
ALN1TISINS a34S  QLOTLS
YNOLLVELSN d3d4S5  BLTTTIS
¥ 0245 dMVYIN NAYE  ZLTTIS

JSYIHOVAL d3ds QLTTTS

NOT LIS D3 d S UM

O13A30 H0Hd "ONIMd  LEZS
9 ‘TYdIONTYYd ‘S3ANa bELS
S3AT1ddNS ONIINDNd  ZhPS
INddNs S, I94IDNDNd  TZH5
UMY NAYE '3IVLS0d  PhES
vIvS 5,AYVLII¥D3S  PETTIS
YIvS S, TvdIDNI¥d O0STTIS

TLOZZLT
IT0ZZTL
TTOCTIL
TTOZZLT
TT0ZZIT
TTOZTIT
TTOZZIT

CONAS TvH3ANIS
. 1902

10
SLNMODD

130d3y 139dn4d F1VA-01-dVIA

NYNGNV 40 NMO.L



Rk L6 10T wea6oad

N Um.m& G LT MMMN_.N_‘MW_% uuau.m._m_._mm uu%wﬂ
%E"86 95" ¢ 00 vv.mmm. oo¢. o 00t IVOHIVIAVA "3I9VIS0d  FES TTOZZHT
%L Z0T ST 888~ mo.hmm“mm #8°0TE 8 069 OF 4] 066 OF YIVS §, AdvI3d03s  +ITTLS TI0ZZHT
%¥0"€0T $6 0LV E- T9°TeL°58 ££748¢°TE 006°£TT 0 006 ETT VIVS S, TV4IDNI¥d QOTTES TTOZEFE
Y TG LvLVTCZ 78°926°% TL°52%'S 008 8T 4] DS 81T DULWI/SHIVETY BA1E  0fbS 6607HIT
%" 26 97 EZ8 Q0°T6 9£7087'9 mhm”m 0 mhm”w IvIAOisSnD S3INddNs  QSbS BEQTVIT
%0°Q0T 00 00" 000°E 00" , 000 € 0 000° ¢ FADYYHD JSM ¥IMIAS  ZE2S BEOTPTT
00T 007 Z5 TSB'E S RF0'T a[¢/131 0 Q00°s UMY NAMS WETIVYM TEZS GOOTYIT
%¥0°001T 00 00008 ‘T 00° , 008 ° T 0 com”va NAYE ‘73and ONILY3IH $T7S B60THIT
%O 00T 007 82°6LL°6 2L 0oni LT 0 Q00°¢T NAYE MIMOd/SIHOIT TIZS G6OLVLL
%6'I0T Pl 686°'T- REBLS LL 80°6bR' /7 Ot €01 0 OFp* 0T IQCLSND S3ATHVIvVS ZBTTLS 660THTL
%5 00T 0Q9729%- 0792504 §5°995°‘6 ceL'6s 0 $TL62

%0 00 055 00" 00 omm. 0 055 fSALIAANS AINVATND  TTCS PSOLTTT
%LT0TT 90°645°8- £9°0L2°'82 13 A TN Ad (0 89+ 0% Q 99+ 08 ITUVIVS AONVATNS  ASTEITS $S0L¢TT
%2°S0T  +¥ 98- 0z " v¥ PTVRLT 00L°F 0 002°T SIAQTONY *S3IT1ddNS  STSS TS09ZTT
%0" 00°000°T 00 Q0° 000°T 0 GoG“T 'SAT1ddNS A¥VHEIT /855 TSOSTIT
%O°00T +0°- LTI ¥ £37508°% LY 0 STL Ly H23Ll ¥Idaw §LTTIS TSOSTTT

1395ang SIONVYGWNDONT ~ (IANIIX3F dlA-- 1334049 SLWLSCaV - - J40dddY - 0 oo : © e OINAA TIVHENED e
319VIIVAY - GIASINAZY /SUANTIL TyNIOTEO S i _ S 2 40d SUAINAQTIOY

1A0d3y 1390N9 A1LVQ-0O1-dv3A
NANGNY 40 NMOL




€

%0°00T

%0°

abed

wo -

00°000'T

08°0TE'T-

8STLELT
00:000°Z
8% p26-

8% 0T# 0T
96°25P°T

139403
EREars-fiv

£9°1T2°2¢

Qo°

00
0F9Ev ‘69T
04 £0S 69
£9"v¥2 ‘22
59T 082
00°6£9"2¢

oc”

Qo°
99766058
St 03 PP
Fa- 2l 33 4

STINTHIWNING

£87S08°S

0o°

9897

6L 25Z"€
Ot 00T 22
207967 ‘T
£6°018°1
20" £9T " 20T
05°9t¥*S

2777292
00"
Ly TLS'8
€% 61219T
29°5TH'9

d3aNIdXZ QLA

STL LY

000°1

000°€
00o0'?
9£9'2L
PETITLT
§50°28

432404
JISTIAIE

COoOOCoOooOOOoOCOoOoooooo

oooo o0

[ Ram Faie s

Sl 1S LaY
/SUdNYEL

BTL LY

000'T

dQuddY

TYNISIHO

pRgp3ALE
P LG LAY

LAY wesSoud
sJdBsn

92:4T TLOL/50/0T pIaeaavab uodsy

HIAL ¥IgaW BLITTS

TS052¥L

YIL CSWITY 3IVOANIW QTLS
WYES0dd THIS d914Y T8¢
DVAVd S3ITNJENS LYV 2TSS
TVAYL SAT1d4NS +#0S  PTES
'WES5YI3 ‘53ATAANS  OTSS
NOTLVINAE T¥ITSAHd QS
$3T74dNS DISAW 928

AYd SONIFALES ¥3MI0  BZIS
ONIJTES ADOTONHDIAL RPIS
WS0dd 100HDS HALHY  LZTS
IDUYHD NI ¥3HIVAL O7TS

ILSENS WHE3L DNOT  Q807TS
SY IYNOTILOMYLSNI  5L07TS
ns ‘sItdvrivs vaL QL07TS
Vivd SISTIVIDEIS  ORITES
SY TYNOLIOMALSNT  6/ITLS
SSA40H4YHYd HLIVIW  ZSTTES
TYvIYs ,S¥aHIYAL Q/ZITIS

¥OLNL 113 Q018

TSOECHT
TS0EZrT
TS0ECHT
TS0ETYT
T50E24T
TS0ECHT
T30EZVT
TS0ECHT
TSOEZHL
TSOECYT
TSOEZHT
TSOECrL
TSO0EZHT
TS0ELrT
TSOEEHT
T50E2YT
TS0EEHT
TSOEZYT
T508CHT

SY I[JNYISNI d3ds 6L071%
WIHIYZL ans d3ds QL0718
NOQLLDNYLSNI a3dS BRLITTIS
OHOWAYd va¥ d3ds  2STTIS
$ ,S¥3HOVIL d3ads QLTTIS

B00EEHT
R0GECPT
BOOECHT
R00EEFT
800LErT

OT13IAIA J0dUd "DNI¥d /5
d fIVdIDNI¥d ‘SANG ¥ELS
SITUILNS INIINIHd  ZhPS
I744AS §,TIV4IDNINd  TZbS

TLO22vT
TLOZTHT
TLOZZYT
FRRITAA N

13043 139dN9 LVA-OL¥VIA

NANdnvy 40 NMOL



¥

%0°00T
%0°%
%8 1S

%0 50T
%9° 201

%LTES

%0 00T

%L 56
#£"90T

%3°91
%0°00T

%¥™L5

%LT9S

124 -

sbed

00:000°€
60"
59755 4T
23°0vZ
00°005°¢
207210 ¥~
82° 9178~

S0"S96'TT

85°076°T
86" 861" ¢~

6L 9TP
0°-

FA N

$6°ZeP

1395414
- A8V IVAY

00"
00°00T°T
0a”

00754

g
£9°'663°69
¢E T8C 08T

2 6vL8

98065 °5L

65°0T6°5E
St yiT 68

TZ7E8
y87CEL T8

tely

08°8%

SIINVAEENONG

00"

00°
SEbSY
81" 78T
00°005
£0°80T ‘ST
96° 62539

£2°58L'Y

S2°YY6'S
00"

2T T0L
§8° L€
bLLIr'
R0"6¥8" LT

£8°8F6°T
£570£6'TT

oo-
77164 0T

£87559°T

ST 805

GIaN3dX3 OLA

000" €
00T'T
000 ST
008
000'€
966 ° 08
1£9'9€2

005°s¢

5289
Qoo
000’
000*8T
000’ ¥Z
oFP 0T

087°6€
300°£9

00s
res €6

00£'T

Q00‘T

gJ3a5IA3d

132ang - LSLALELAY

oOOoOOoOO0OG
o
=]
]

L£9°8€7

4] 00s° 52

000° 8T
Opb 0T

oOoDoDOo0D
o
o
o
"
=

08/ ‘6E
900" £9

oo

0 008
4] ¥25 €6

0 002°T

FSEANTYL

pngpaALE 10I wedboud
LYTLGZI LMD 14asn

QLT PTOZ/S0/0T tpeleaaual 1inday

013A30 40¥d "DONI¥d  ZE2% TIO0ZZST
“SVAIINIYd 'S3NG PELS TTOZZST
SATI4dNS DNTINDYd  ZZFS TTOZZST
I1ddns ,STYdIONTHd  TebS TTOZZST
7% 3704IW ‘A9vLSOd  bES TTOZZST
VS L SITUVEANDAS  PRTTIS TTOZeST
vIvsS |\ STV4IONTdd  Q9TTTS TTO2eST

IYIAOLSND SITVILNS  05FS SROTHYT
99UVHD JSN ¥IMIAS  ZEZS BEOTHYL
OYOHIVIVd “¥31vM  TEZS 6OOTHPT
AVd 73N OINLTLVAH  PT2S 860THPL
JVHYd HAMOd/SLHDI TT2S 660T+yT
TQOLSND SITUVIVS  ZELLTS B60TFFL

OWivd T OL T NdT 93TTTS 660ZEHT
d ‘ASUNN ‘AdvIvS  SETITS 660TEFL

SONG HIYZHY

SIT14d4NS AINVAIND  TTSS vS0LZHT
ITAYIVS JONVAIND  9LTTTS +50L2HT

SIAQIANY “S3IAT440S  STSS TE0926T

ONAS IVAINSD 10
i 1904 SANNQIDV

JHOd3Y 1390149 31Va-0L-dViA

NdNgNvy 40 NMOL



s ot weihoae
5 9bed 9Lt wmawwgwo.n spazelaush u,.Enmm
%LT06 £2°96579¢ B9 TEREZZ B0 227 8E S0E°987 Q 50997 ATAYIVS FONVAEIND  9LTLIS FS0LEST

S AINVAIND,

%Z2°88 ZI°2/9 00" 09°Z¥b 0Z9°1 0 029'T STAQTANY *S3T1ddNS  STSS 250%7ST
%0°" 00 00s"'T 00" i 005"t 0 00s'T 'SIIdANS AAVIEIT /2855 FS087ST
%0- 00" 50% 00" ol o 008 0 0os YAL "gWTHd 2OvAIN  OTLS ZS082ST
%0° 00" 00% 00- 0o° Q0s Q QoS Wra9D0dd THIS WILldY T726§ ZS087ST
%9°$8 96794 PO et o[ . 00§ 0 00s TA0IN S3TT44005 08 LSS JEOECST
%2786 T vee 66 ZTT 2L ST ¥8°F TIZ LT 0 TI2 LT WHSSYI1D “S3IddNS  OTSS Z50£25T
%2'8TT 99789¢- 06 61T 99°6¢0L°T JES'T Q mmmuﬁ NOILVONA3 TIWoISAHd  ObbS £S0£Z5T
%6791 Q5 816°S 00°00C‘T 0o* mﬂH”h 0 oIt £ S3I7ddNs JISnW  SZhS TSOETST
%0 00°000°2 00° i 00 ) aoQ’z 0 Qno‘z TAQIW INIWIDINIAWOD  LTES F90E2ST
%L°STIT S8 Zlee'e- mm-MﬁN.mﬁ 26767587 9TV ' 7T Q mH¢“NH AIW SONIdI1S Y3IHIO 627§ ¢SOETST
%1796 057 /1T 087085°¢ 06 1St Qs0°E 0 080 € CANIAILS ADOTONHDAL 82TS 290£¢5T
%0" o0 0051 00" 00" 005°T 0 00s'1 UH0dd TOOHIS HIL3Y £ZTS ZSOETST
%07 00T $8-455°¢E- ZETLPLE r'p Ny Q . 0 0 IDUVHD NI A3HDIVYAL 9?16 ZS0f725T
%k b 598°2¢ 0g- 89" 1ET ooo.mm 0 omo_mm 4ns S3ITAVIVS VAL QL02TS CSQETST
%286 06°0b5 0T S0 ¥0E ‘005 mo.mmmnmm 0T 9L£8 0 Z0T 848 AdIli SISITTVIOA4S QO8TITE ZS0€2ST
%9° 4 $ET0SE* ST 00° . mm.mmc.m va”nm . 0 mmvumm SV IYNOTIDNMESNT  HLTTLS 508251
%1001 ¥6°SEQ°Z- mm.mwm”mmm Z 29712 ZTE L E04°C 0 HHh.mom.N IAVIVYS ,SUIHOV3L O/TETE 280875T
% /ZT 02°/28°8- 09 "TET &L 09 8ES’S 3 4 AT 0 £Pr' 0t HOENL TMT GQOTS Z50£eST
%0 00°005'9 Qo° o]0 005%°9 0 Q05’9 SISSY YISNI 03dS G202TS S00EZ5T
%0° oD onn‘s 00" . Qg . Qoo‘s 0 ooo“m YAHOVAL 9nNs 034S  QL0ZTS BODEZST
%R ETT £2°7Ll‘6e- TT OFS FET 297 L85 LT 913 22T 0 98 Il NOTIDNYLSNI 03dS BLTTTS §00£2sT
¥T°TIT 69°9bL‘62- ¥5°966° 007 EL EST'TE 08 ZFT 0 £08'2¥2 ATAJIN Yav 43ds  2TITS 800£?5L
%0°00T ¥~ 20 BIF 9es 2T §89°89 T80°S6S 0 T80°S6S (S¥IHOVAL 034S  QSTITS S00LesST

3455 I00HDS 371G TH -

SERLSCAY dN3D

/SN

- QY ddY .
YNIDINO

C.43sang -
© A3STAIY

139gnd
JIEVTIVAV

- SFONYASHIONT

GIANIAXI: QLA

TR ¢ |\ (1= B4

130434 1390048 31vVQ-OL-dVviA
NJNANv 40 NMOL




9

% TS

%€ " 9TT
%z TTT

%0° 86
%2 E

%0°

%ET00T

DLy

abed

007000°E
00°862°T
85" 0rL ‘7T
00° 66 ‘T
007000 "€
59796974~
04790101

87 SZTE'9T

oy
867 2¥6'¥e-

8505
007087
00°058"€

00°005 ‘LT

96 6TH-

6T e

Q0
TG FER‘LYT
$6°890°84T

¥T°008°02

00°T6
00°000" €
00" 608°E
6F 805 ‘9¥
9¢60F ST
¥£492°59T

vy ‘z
00"
00-

(¢l

2T 659°STT

FA YA

00°
00°STr'S
00" €Y
00"

007 |
6£°099°SE
$£°00°59

ge v28'9

§7°00t'6
00*
00°T6T'E
TS 16Y'€
b 06S ' $T
95 6¥0‘ ¥

0o*
00" 05T

Go-

867505 ST

05700t

000°€
€229
€07 ST
vor ‘T
000 ¢
5601
08/'€se

000 S

¥6E 02

Siv'2
Q5L
goo'y

00587 LT

Sy 0ET

664

000'¢
€229
£0%*ST
¥6b' T
000°‘€
S6L:0vT
08Z‘€ST

COoODooOo0o

0 000" vs

§2£°6
000‘€E
000'9
000'th
000° O£
¥6£ ' $07

oCoOoSooo

cir‘e
0sL
000*t

ooo

Q 00S°4LT

0 ske*QET

¢ 662

pnap1f16
DI2LOZ LG
9ELLT TTOL/SO/0T

O0T3A3A 403¥d “INI¥d
‘SIVYAIONIYd '5aANng
SATTddNS DONTINTHA

IXTddNS STVAIDNIUA

DHIS HDIH ‘3I9OVLISOd

QI weuficdd
HEEL) ]

spRavssunh duaday

LELS
FELS
[44 4
TZ#S
YPES

VS ,S3IYVIIYI3S  FBTITS
VIVS | STVEIONI¥d Q9TITS

TT0229T
1162291
1T0¢C9T
TTOZZ9T
TLozesL
TTOZZYT
TT0ZE9T

6602¥5T

IYIQOLSND S3TTdNS

SADNVHD ASM ¥IMAS
OHDS JTAQIW “¥ILvM
AdIlK ‘73aNd ONILv3IH
JGGIW ¥3AMOd/SLHDIT

05¥S
[4Y4
TEZS
¥Ies
TTEs
I4oLsns S3TAYIvS ZETTITS

660TH5T
B60THST
660THST
Bo0TPSL
E60THST
660TPST

TEAYW S3ATNddS 1¥Y

4158

W ‘YIHLO ‘SOUvMY  9R0TSS

I430 T100HDIS FTCATW

00ES

£5058S5T
2508E5T
Z508EsT

d0ddd¥
TYNTOTHQ

135004 -
G35TA3Y

SEHONTHEWNINZ SLNLS Y

SSUINYYL

1390ng
L2d 1891 IYAY

G2ANIAXA GLA T ONNATTRHENID

1¥0d3H 139dN9 A1vVA-O1-¥V3A
NJndnv 40 NMOL




FA

%8°TOT

®¥r-zT

%6" 1L
%07 00T

abed
917949 2~ S0 Stbgse
§5°T20'T o0*
LTF92°T LETLOSCE
807 SY¥- PEETH P8
00" 00% 00"
FETHFT 297851t
00°0s2 a0
5879672 O-s¥9'a
T6°£99'T 9£°TL8
P ErTE 9 L%
oo.mmm“mﬁ 0o’ .
6575807 8- ¥ 582 61
05764 88 6vs"T
0o0° mmm.ﬁﬁs 00"
00°008'% 00"
00° 000! 7 00"
00"QTL'TE 0Q° .
8L76FT T T8 6¥F"56%
00" 0%- 00"
1 BPA TR T4 mn.cmvuaa .
ET 726" £9'T/R°0E9°E
00°-Q00°9 QQ°
00°000'€ 00" .
Q£ 650°Z9 0s° 89 ZET
9s QfR's 20°$79 L8
06 TgE‘0Z SOTE06 TPE

L3sans \wugqu53U7m
379V IIVAY

TL°05%°18

007562

9€°8/2°2
$£7950° 1T

¥ mmm 99v

00"
00"
25°602°61
(440 T4 2"
0 T9Z sy

d36N3dXT aLA

01Z'9tr

£18'1

0s0'8
sEv'SH

008
SES ¥

0s?

S60° V7
LBT'S
fT19'¢
§26:ST
vEG ST
8907

0

oS ‘g
000"z

Q00 b£
Q8T '8¥b

0

Si6'iY
SALAVT Y

0009
000'€
L1212
¥89' 0T
ors 20F

139404
QIS LAY

0 0TZ'9El

g LTE'T

06s0‘®
SEP'S6

oo

Si6' b
9L OHT b

(o Lo Lo fow s Jomfon YorRow o Jov Jow o R Lo }
o0
o
o
~

000'S
000 '€
IT2 €12
p88" £0T
9bs " L0%

oooao

SIKISEQY. - - d0dddY: -
SSaANYEE JrZHmeO

priqpaALf
LYI LRI LD

14T ueaboig
e

9EILT ZZNZ/SO/NT ipatedsush 2.a0day

ATUVIVS ADNVAIND 9/TTTS

$50/29T

‘SATdANS A¥YESIT 2859
1STIVIDIAS YIQ3AW  QLTTTS

£505¢9T
£50529T

VIL 'aWIIY FOVIIIW OTLS
HOIH S3IddNS LUV  STSS
HDIK S3I74dNS $0S  PLSS
'WASSYT1D ‘S3ITN44NS  OTSS
NQELLYDNA “TVIISAHd  Obbs
S3T1ddNS TSI $29S
HOTH INFWIDNTIWAHOD STES
9IH SANIJILS ¥3HLO BLLS
ONIJILS ADCTONHIIL EZITS
ILSENS WH3L ONOT 08021
SNI TVINAWI1ddNS 9Z07TS
ONINSOW 1¥S-SENS  2/07TS
ans SaATYVIYS vaL QL0718
HSIH S1SITvIZAdS Q8TTIS
YNOILONYWLENT 5 H 6ZTTIS
SNIASNS ISAOH NI SLTTIS
TevIvs ,Su¥3HOYdIL Q/TTIS

£50£29T
£S0EI9T
£50E251
£50E29T
£50829T
ESOEZST
£50829T
£508491
ESDEZIT
£30£291
ESDECOT
£S0E29T
ESOECHT
ES0EE9T
£5S0£29T
£S0E29T
£50£29T

SY 1OMMESNI 0345 6207TS
WIHIYAL 9nNs dads  Q/07TS
SY IDEISNI 0945 64TTIS
25 HOIH wEY d3ads  ZLTTIS

LSYAMDIVAEL 04 OLTTTS

800£29T
B00LZ9T
S00EC9T
B00E29T
800LZ9T

03 dS: I00HIS HITH™

R N S

Q7 0

130d3d 139dng I1VA-OLUVIA

NdNdnv 40 NMOL



8

'R
o
o

o

Rg  g8Y~R
3]
— ~

SEERBEBERERBERE

g
—

abed

8L 80T T

00" 9EZ*+T
00" ¢6L'2-
00°026°2

00°008°S
9eSET
TETIE’E

00°000° 0%
00°008°%
on-”
00°000'€
0025 S8T
957

00°000° 0%
SE°T5T°E

18°6£7°6
L8 vr0 T~
135anN9
FIgVIIvAY

£L7TO9'Z8T

007845
00°648°TT
00*

067,
10°$28°7
£7°09€

8T 66b €€

00°
FPETETL9L

€47 58T
yEgLETEE

- SHONYEEWAIND

£E78Y9° 20T

00°98T°T
0c*
00°
00"

£5°06Y°E
9192t

9% " ¥86
927 29¥ "8

© g3aNzdx3

2T2'98E

0000t
52798

QS QT
96/ ‘0¥

1490149
3513y

OO0

oo0

COOOO00O0O0000O0000

SLWISLaY

C AN YL

812°98¢

000:9T
9806
0762

009°§
0059
Q00*¥

000 0¥
$22'98

5P 0T
962" 0t

d0uddY

TYNIDIHO

praplALé
LS Lzt Lo

107 weaboay
TIEEN

QT PZOZFE0LUT pelvdAval oday

IQOLSND SITHVIVS  Z6TTIS

660THIT

IITdWOD WAITNJINAAD 9758
H S3I1ddNS 3IHAVHD ZT55
H "¥3HLO ‘sSgodvmy  980TSS

ESOSE9T
t505E9T
ESQSEST

A9 - ALNIANLS:-

£3Iddns HXAL QOOM  STSS
ANIWATNDI aNVE  ZBOTSS
SIWE0AINN ANYE  TH0TRS

ETOSE9T
E£T0SENT
£10589T

AQOH - INJANLS

HiI¥ T00HDS 3T0AIW  958%
YINSNI SOTIRTHLY  900%72§
' INIWDOTIAIA 30dd  JELS
JLILITHLY IDTY1SId  $£4S
SOUYMY DTIATHIY  FEOLGS
INIVEL ‘ddns KLY /ST0TSS
PINTWAINDA Wys:  9TOLSS
UNODIY/SOTAIHLY  ATOSES
L EDI "INOW AWVD  L009ES
L¥OdSNVYL JTEITHLY 9£ES
dSNVHEL SOX13THLY 900FES
IDI3d0 Q0HIS HITH  (05S
SUIIVL 13ADTL  EBTTTS
IHOVOD ‘S3I¥YIVS  88TTIS
FONIYHL JX1FTHIY  8TTTS

SHY T QL T N4 9RTTITS
H ‘4SUNN “A¥YIVS  SRTITS

CTOSE9T
¢105€9T
CTOSE0T
2105891
CTOSE9T
{LOSE9T
CLOSEST
ZE0SE9T
¢L0SE0T
¢TDSE9T
ZT05E9T
¢L0SE9T
ZT0SE9T
Z105¢£97
ZTOSE0T

6602897
660ZE9T

'SATTAdNS ADNVAIND  TTSS
VIVS S, ANYIIND3S $RITTLS

£ €7

¥50£29T
¥50LE9T

32 ¥0d -

180434 139dN49 1Va-0L-dVIA

NdNENyv 40 NMOL



prgpaA & 10T weJdboad

6 ahed 95341 MMMW memw :pe1ELtaUsh ummmwﬂ
%0 00°0<3 00" 0n" 058 0 058 YLSINIWAY SSINISNG 7£/S 66OFPTLT
%0° 00°00T 00" Q0 00T 0 00T WLSINIWGY SSINISNT OT2S 6EOPTLT
%0 00" 00T 00 00° Q0T 0 00T $3ATddnS YTLNLWOD  $79S BEOPT/T
%6°6T e 007 go" 9/ 6% 0s¢. Q omm_ 53114d01S 3IT440 TLFS 60OFTLT
%0° 00°000'F 0g- (F) [3]e 1 8] 000 ¢ LIany TYNNNY $OES 6e0FTLY
%0 00 FI8'ET Q0" 00" YIS ET o FIS' €T ADTANIAS AILIVEINOD  0ODCS GBEOVTLT
¥grIT  2LC0ST'TL ET°IELT S0 29 O0S'ET 0 GOS'ET SONIdILS ¥3IHLO 67TS 660PTLT
%0" 00700022 th 00- . ono‘ee 0 goo'ze LTS IQIMLOINISTO  22T¢ 660FTLT
%0"E0Y 20°068°T- £9°6Th LT [ VA AN ooo_mw 0 gooie9 ISSY SSIANISNE 4¥  LRTTIS 660bTLT
%0°E0T $0°5E9°T- 9L 10t ST ETT'ST 008 S 0 005'¥s SSIANISNG 110dAVd  Z8TITS 660FPT/T
%0°H0T ZSTBYR‘b- 88°025°76 +9°980°t¢ fELTET 0 8¢/ 12T NINIWGY SS3INISNE PSTTITS 6BOPTLT
G NS NOT LY S TN IHAY
%0°00T 55°00L° 7~ 0o 55°00L° 2 0 0 ] O¥d LN3QNILNIYIINS [E€L5 BBQZTLT
%0 00°0SE 0" 00° Qs 1] 0S¢ d S, INIINALINIYALNS E££€/5 660¢TLT
%L°086 TO F2E 00* 00F 66°SLL°2 oom“m 0 005°¢ 4 5, INAONAINIHA405 ¢525 660¢TLT
%0° 58 66"SL¥'T 69"+ ZET66E T 00s’s 0 ags‘s S %,1N3ANIINIHI4NS T7%S 6607T/T
%< B8Y £0°/b8°2 00" 26°259°¢2 0om“m 0 005°s d S, IN3AONIINTHIANS  FFES 660CTLT
%EPOT 29°915'Z- 00" 09% ' ¥F mm.wmm“wﬂ 005" 8% 0 005 °8% S ®°1dnNs OL AD3AS TRITTS 65H07I/T
%6° 86 POZE6'T ¥LT0ET¥ET 22694 5b 2E6'TIT 0 2E6°TLT S, INJONTINTH3Ad4RS  TSTTES ©60¢1LT
%L#0T 00" L05- Qo 00 Z00'ST QOmHNﬁ 0 oOm”Nﬁ Q JJLLLIANOS NOCHDS TELS 6B0TTLT
%0° 00°000'07 oo 00" g0 Q¢ 0 Q00 §¢ SIJTAMIS WIAT  90LS BBOTTLT
%0° 00" 08L 00" 00" Qse 0 s/ SASNAD  FOES GEOTTLT
%0" 00" 000'T i 00" 000°T 0 000°'T SIOTLON TvodT TOES BBOTLLT
%Ly SR°TREIOV op-895°‘02 SL°691°8 000°69 0 Q00 69 OYdWI/SYIvd3d Da19  0EbS 660ZH9T
%G LS E2 255'F QQ- 2L TL0 8T £29°02 0 2907 IYIAQLEND SATL4NS  0SHS GEOTHOT
%0°00T 0QO0° 00°005 "2 00- Qos*2 0 ocm”h 'IDUYHD SN ¥AMAS  ZEZS BEOLFOT
%0°00T O0° 9t 08f ‘0T wm.mﬁm“m 000 “#T 0 Qo0 ¥T TOOHIS HOIH ‘HIALYM TEZS 660THOT
%0°00T Q0° T6 S0T it 60°96% 'Y 008 ° 1S 0 00515 H9IH *713nd ONILYAH FLZS GEOTHOL
%0°00T 00" R2°£9'¥S F A VAR 052°26 0 0ss' 16 HOIH ¥3EMOd/SIHOTY TTZS BEOTHOT

132003 SIONTEEHNDNZ - J3adN34X3 aLls o 139008 SINLSCaY . d0¥ddY - 0 S LGNNd L VE3NIa
ATV ITVAY 3STAZY SSHINYHE - TYNIDTHO . o - :

C ET £707 dGd

LHOdEN 1390aNn8 A1VA-O1-HVIA
NANANV 40 NMO.L




pngpIALE gL wedbodd

0T abed 8E:LT mmm_m. Mm\r% 1pILEIIUDE u.wwmwm
%0° 00°Q9% 00- Qo 0S¥ 0 09% LH0LDINIA JLIITHLY  TTHS PTOTELT
%0- 00°00E oo 00" 00€ 4] 00 JH0LD3INIA DIV pPES ZI0TLT
%0° 00"00%*T 00" 00° 008'T 0 005‘L AJQ A0Ud HOIL UIa Re/SS OTOTZ/T
%0° 007006 00" 00* Q06 0 413 d MDEL 40 YOQLDENIA LSS QTOTZLT
%579 6£°STO' . 00" 19 8 00s' 2 0 005"z ADOIONHIAL 40 "¥Id TZks OTOTZLT
%O 0T 0B bE8'T- mm.mmmnhv mo.¢mv”mﬂ mmwumm s} £€8'79 02 vivd LDTMLSIA  ASTTITS OTOTZLT
%0°$0T OT°0TZ‘'S- ST 8£5°08 S6°T£9 62 000" L0T 4] Q00 L0T H331 40 ¥0103¥IQ  SSTELS OTOTCLT
%0*00T 00° 00" 00°005'T o0s'T 0 00s°T 0 J0¥d W3NS “1SSY 945 BOOTZLT
%0 007008 Q0" 00" oom. 0 00s 17804 “¥3dNS LSSV £L/S S00TZLT
%0°S0T 00°0s- 0o” 00" 0S0'T Q00T 0 goo‘tT FANFINTAAANS “1SSY  Z2eLS 600TELT
0" 007001 0l Qo° 00T 0 00T TIATEL A4vlS 113 FT/S 600TZ/T
BT 857087 P ET 00 (303 0 Qog T1d4ns ONIISAL 113 785 6001341
%0~ 00°000‘¥ 00" 00- ono'Y 0 goo ¥ TddNS INTHIVAL 113 QTSS 600TZ4T
%L°0T B8 LFE'T oo” TL° 25T 005°'T 0 005°T FIANZINIYIANS "LSSY  IZPS 600T2LT
%549 00°005°9 00 DOS“ET 00- . o000z 0 ooo“om SYQLYTISNYUL I3 E7ES 600T¢/%
%E- 09T BZ790L'0T- ¥4 205 G2 mm.wma.w omh”mﬂ 0 09/ /T S5Y GL AMVI3dD3AS  PRETTS 600TCLT
%9°60T Z67664'€T~ St TOPSTL a7 A 4 0L FFL 0 002 #¥T NILNIH3dNS “1SSV  $STTTS 600ETLT
QSTANTINS
%CE 0279498 oo O£ £7€ 00001 0 00001 AVO 100HDS ONOAIS  6ZES 8001241
%" zQT tP 0ST'§- 29" Z+T“vOT 78 E85°¢L 9.5 ¥1IT 0 L5 #TT FOIAYIS TVRININD  Q/0FES 2001zsY
%0°C0T OT° S9°920°8€E mo.mmm“mﬁ 000 8F 0 ooo”mv A¥s \ SATAVLIAEDAS  PETTES 800TELT
¥ETATT  £LUSbELT- £9°+4£°08 0T "T96°0S GO0 ¥0T 0 000" +0T 35 IIdNd 20 "¥IQ ZSITES §OOTeLT
%0° Q0" +39 o)y 00° ¢mm. 0 ¥99 AL HOAL WHOMLAN  TTZS OTSYTLT
%8 P0T ZLTTST'8- Qe 0T "S€T FA T T89"LT ] 185°941 IVW/L¥0ddNs HIAL THTITIS OTSFTLT
%0°00T 0O0° g0~ 00°005‘T Q0s ‘T 0 005°T

¢0ddd¥ .
TYNIDTHO

SLNESCOW

139ang CSTINVIEWADNT T QIONIGXI. QLA 13Dand
: . : JSHANTHL

1d IV IIVAY . a3STAFA

L80d3d 1390n8 41Va-01-dVdA
NJNAGNV 40 NMOL




pRqpaALe
LA LGS LD

ar wesEoud
MFSN

1T afied QEILT ZI0T/E0/0T tpormdausb yJodew
%0 00°000°9 o0 0o° 0o0'9 0 0009 1SAS=-SITINLILSENS TL0ZTS B05EZLT
%E " ¥E €8°90F° /T [1]¢he £2°T01'6 80597 0 205°92 VWS L SYIHOVIL  L00LTS BOOLCLT
%0°00T ¥S 26E°S~ 86765T'S 95" 2£¢ 4] 0 0 SANILILS TOOHDSIMd G(7TS 660£7/T
%0 00T T9°00S- 0G” T9°005 0 0 1} T S9NS T00HZS3dd  6202TS 660ETLT
%0" 297 T25°0%2 00~ 00" 2T6°0F2 0 726°0bT d/AAHASTY, SATYVIVS  BTLTS BGOEZLT
%0°D0T 06 ¥05°02Z- Nw-Nmm”on mm.mmn. 0 0 0 NV SETNHYIYS YAl 9TTS 8608241
B0 00T §7°9E6°Si- 90°0LE BE L179858 L ¢ 0 0 ASHNAN TO0HISTYd  SBITIS 660EeLT
%2 €07 TE SLF°I- 9T 9% T 6579/7'% 6929t 0 697 "o NE1SNI TO00HDS3¥d  HLTTTS 6605/ T
%A vL €0°Z5T ¥R RE"877°6TZ 00°094'22 OFPT TEE 0 OPT'1ct ¥ 03ds 1Q0H2SIUd  ZLTTILS 66D:7/1
%9'9f  T6 ¥PF'SIT FETEZY S ¥LOTITO'TT 0gR'097 0 088‘0s? IHOVAL 100HDS3Ed  QLTTTS BO0ECLT
%0°00T 0Q0° 86715841 20°E04LTT §SZISET 0 $8¢ SET MI40S WILNDWOD M/Q  ZTES OTOLZLT
%85t £5°65/5'8¢ 00’ £9°98T'¥T 294728 0 297728 NIVIA HOAL ®3ILNdWOD £979 OTOLZLT
%0° 007 TEE 0T 00° 00" 2€€°0T 0 ZEE 0T SONIILS WIHIO 6ZLS 8Q0£ZLT
%0°Q0T 27 T8°89%° 8¢ TF 6LV ST 808°¢£6E 0 208 " £6L SESTIVIDIALS OJTTTS 800£2/T
%0 05°82L°FE 00~ 00- mmm“mm 1] 622 EE SY TYNOLLONWISNI  &LTTTS S00E£CLT
%Z ZLT 68 VEE0E- ST TRG‘/9 mm.mvmuw <E6 I 0 Nmmnmv vay d3ds  ZTJTITILS 800£dLT
%0°00T 21°- PETELEPY gL TTOTT SEP S0 Q SEPTS6 ATUVIVS SH3IHOVIL QLTTIS BODEZLT
%0'TOT €£v gsg‘e- 95" gEL " TOE L8°T8Y OF £96'8¢E 0 £06‘8EE NOSHI4UIVHI Wv3l BSTITS BODEZLT
%0" STV Vb (110} co- . T vt Q TZF by 235 UIQ JLIFHLY #8TTLS 660127
%515 3L AR 9270ZF 1T 92790t €T 6t ip 0 SL6° LY 0123410 DTAITHIY  SATLTS 660T2LT
%0 Q0" 9ET 1ol Q0" SET 4] SET d0.09¥TQ S)¥Y INTL 2.9 ETOTZLT
%0 " 00528 Qo 00" $75 0 £ds LA0L3UIA SLYY 3INIZ QTS ETOITLT
%b T 0s 00 982 007537 g0~ $95 Q £98 4093910 SL¥v INTZ T2bS £TOTZLT
%0* 06" 00% 00- 00" a0¢ ¢ Qo¢

132dan4a
- OF5IATES

SIWLSCAY . dOYUddY -
/SUANTEL  TYNIDINQ

- 43sn
10d

130an3
A1F1TVAY

SADONVHIWNING Q2aNI4X3 QLA

1H0d3Y 139dN49 ILvA-OL-UVIA
NJNdnv 40 NMOL




i

%0*

%6601

%0°
%0°00T
%0° 8%
U

abed

Q0°000°€

9T T6L 1T
o0~

Ne.mwm.mm
£87657°9¢

98" £25 0L
007055 ' 02T~
79868 ‘v~

£0°906'98

00°000°ZL
00
676652
71988 L

L3sang
I8V ILVAY

00-

#8302
0Z'920°/2L

00°
09°252'962

L¥ 9¥8°LST
08 LvE 852
T6°696 GFL

LB"BZ

go"
g0-009°s
B8 ESL°T
09745

SIONEUBNDNT

00°

0G*
00"

oo*
£8°652°9¢

29°985°02
05" Z06°EE
T4 SEP 8T

00" +0°T

000'€

000°ZT
920" 222

B9£'EH
£87°962

656°'89T
§02°'T4T
L00°SPT

000’06

000! 2T
000'8
000'S
000'8

139ang .

a3sIAg

COoCOOo for o }

ocoo

aooo

-SIHISTAY
S/ SRANYYL

000°¢

00021
ge0’izL

89£'€6
£52°96¢

656981
§0£‘TLT
Z00°SPT

00006

2. dOdddY
THNIOTHO

prygplALE 1y wedBolg
LyLgztial dIEN
Q€34T ZZDZ/40/CGT :peamaaunb uoday

Iind 44v1ls OISAW  QLOCZTS ETOSELT

WOD-NOILVIHO4SNYEL SE8S GEDFELT
40 NOTIVIAQHSNYEL (£CS BHOCELTL

434S 1DTH1STIA IN0  FEES ROOEELT
40 MOTLV.IHOdSNYHL (FES BOOEELT

ADNAYIANCD ,SASUNN  TELS 6H0ZELT
W 3FOVIATIW S,SASUNN 0TS B60ZELT
ns ‘3IDIA¥IS HLIVAH TOSS 6EOZELT

TELOVHEINDGD HLTVYAH BZES BBOZELT
NIdILS §,NYIDXSAHd /J0ES B60ZE/T
S 'HSANN ‘AMVIVS  SBOTLS 660CELL
283ud T QL ¥ NdT 9BTTTS 6E0ZELT

DOTOHOASd TQOHDS  //TTTS 80082.LT
SUTHAOM WID0S  G9TTLS 2008241
va08 BITITE SO008¢LT

ALSASTAWIIY ISEN0D  ZELS BOSEZLT
A9408d FIOIM-WALSAS TELS BOSE2LL

NIKWQY JAIM-WILSAS 2TLS 6OSEZLT
WSEVED JAIM WALSAS  OTSS 60SECLY

CUOONAD CTVEANIS T
ST re0d SINMODOY

JHOdTY 1394ANg JLVA-OL-dVdA

N3NANV 4O NMOL




£t

%6

%L16

%0°

%ETE0T

%0 TP
XS LY

wbed

257821 6TT

LE 62991

00°TZ9°ZT

99" 00E T~

£ T62°FET

00915 ¥

0¢°000°2

88765852

00°185°Z
00006/
00700 T
00°000°62

139an4d
F1EVIIVAY

FO €£9° 69T

9£°620°8¢T

vk

6£7599'8¢

00 8TT!¢
9L ¥0r' €
62 7¢T'S

§8°9££'8T
00 ZPe S8

00"

go*

98" Y108
00°SZ¥ 6T
¥S T6¥ 2T
00"

00”

0g” mvm 4

© SEAINTAERMNONT

PL*8L8°9

22°089°22

co-

287%E9°S

24°060'C
y8° 826

E£°00T'6
02 £96°%
08T 0S

SGTEQG'9
00°929°1¢

Q0"
00" F6Z
78°616° Y

9%°20§°'2
ve Ly
0o-

QAGNIAXI. OLA.

FIb 567

BEP'SOT

Te9'eT

000 ‘O

- 43sang .
035TAIS

COoOOoOOOOoOOo

SOOSOOoO0

oo oa

TS LS 0OV
CSEANYEL

I’ s6z

6Er' 9T

frd-Rran

000 ‘0t

000°0z
000°0T
000 ° 0%
000‘E
00G'Ss
000°0T
oot e
£E68°v2
056°2TT

. dDddy -
CTHNIDINHO

prgaaA L0
IA2LGZI LMD

QL wetSoud

tAEEN

9€: 2T 2Z0L/SO/UT pIavUINAG duodan

1702 934S PNOTLINL  TZEs

800¥6/.T

J00E6LT

6005541

AUNIVA 9 SVD ADMMEE  08FE
O3dWI/SUIVETd G198  QEbs
ALT¥AD3S HNIQTING TEES
YIHSTINONIIXI TATd 97§
LOVHINGD DAS JIAD3  £92¢
SUIVAIN INIWAINDI 7975
SAN3IdILS ¥IHIO 6218
INIVW AWIL-1¥vd T6ZTTS
OLOTHIA ALTTITIOVd  RETTIS

660Z%LT
6o0LrLiL
66027/ T
660CrLL
66071/ T
660I1rLT
660Z%LT
66020LT
6B0ZFLT

DYITIW ,SNYIACLSND OT/S
IVIAO0ESND SATTd4NS  QS¥FS

S3INOHJIEAL TPES
AINID “13nd ONILVIH #1ZS
WINTD H3AMOd/SIHOTT  TIZS
TOOLSMD SATYVIVS  2Z260OETS
TODLSOD) SATEVIVS  ZRTTLS

660TPLT
660TFLT
660TF.LT
660TF.T
660TFLT
660TFLY
660TF.LT

“dIND3 ,SL¥Y INIJd 8258
W1SISIY P "SNVHEL  [R0T5S
4 "UFRLO ‘squvMY  9201LS

SANTSILS DISW  6ZTS

D?:m IYY3N2D

t¥03 SINAGDD

£TOSELT
£L0SELT
£T05ELT
ET05ELT

T0|

1¥0d3d 139dN9 1VA-OL¥UVIA

NYngnv 40 NMOL



prgp1£1S QI we.bcag
YIRS LMD LJasn

T abed 9¢: LT TT02/50/00 sPaarsaueb lloday

%8 +T g1 Z86°Z +0°0CE Q8 L6T 005 ‘£ 0 O0s‘g S SATN44NS AAVIEIN  £855 TSOHSERT
%0 00° 00T 00 0g- 0GT 0 Q01T V3L “GWIFd IvOIIIN 0TS TS0£Z8T
%L°9 6 BPE‘T Q0" TS TST Qos‘z 0 00s'e ArAD0Yd HDS ¥IALAY TI9S TEOLZBT
%0° 326 6E° 0¥ oF vl TZ2°89T'T 000'7 0 000z SNVMS 53I7ddNS L¥Y  gTSS TSOEZST
uer O PLL 96°5€ | 00" QsL Q cmn. SNWYMS S3ITddAS ¥0S  PTSS TSO0EZ8T
%9°6L QU LVZ'E YLOTE'S 2 [ ard F A 006’ ST 0 006°ST 'WYSSY 1D 'SITTddNs QTS5 IS0S¢ST
%0 TE 0z 08/s't 08'612 00° Qo0 ¢ 1] 0007 ITddls J3 IVOISAHd  OFbS TS0LC8T
%9°£R TT°8Z¢% 68 TI3°T 00" 000z 0 onote YMS SIATH4NS JISNA  S2FS TSOEZST
%8 66 LLTEE 6T 9P 8T 62°896'2 YR 1T 0 4T YM5 SONIATLS ¥3IHLO 615 TI0EZ8T
%¥0°00T ¥O°- P 6281 29788 890z Q 290°z ONIJILS ADQIONHDAL 971¢ T50:e9T
%0°T SO"106°6 $6°46 oo Q00°0T 0 000°0T ¥D0¥d 100HDS ¥WI1AV  ZZTS TS0£Z8T
%0° 00 088y 00" 00" 088y 9 088"+ IOYVHD NI ¥3HOVAL 97TS T508Z8T
%0* 00°009°6 a0 og- oom“m 0 00s‘6 NS LSSV TUASNI  6L07TS TSOEERT
%rE QT STZ9¢ 060" . Om.¢mm“H 000 8¢ 0 ooo”wm S fSFIAVIVS "vIL QL07I5 TSOEZHT
Y0 LTT 9.°264'76~ " €98°595 8CTH08 £L 648°9%S 1] 648 98 NYMS SLSITVIDAAS O8TEIS TH0EZET
%2769  FY SPEST e ¥85°Te 88°+92'% SE0SY 0 SE0'sE SV TYNOILDA¥ESNI  6/TTIS LSOEZRT
%6°8L ZL8i0'8 82°¥82°71% 00" | €92 0v 0 €32 0t S5330UdVdvd HIYW ZSTTTS TSOECET
%2007 2¢°668°€- [0°£68°026°T S TSS Qs8¢ m¢m“hwﬁ.m 4] SESLOT'Z TY¥YIVYS ,SH3HIVEL QLTTTIS TSOEZET
%L68 N 9ET Y v6 56 LY 2072559 ¥85°09 0 85" 09 HOANE 713 Q0TS TSOETRT
%0" 00°000°S Qp- ng- 000’ 0 000°s LISSY diSNI 03dS  6L0¢T5 B00LZEL
%0 00-005°'9 00" 00" 005°9 4] 00s'9 ¥IHIVIAL NS A3dS  QL07TS RO0L2RT
%2'16 0T ZLL°IT 257292 ETT £2°768 8T LTRIEYT 0 LT6 EPT *1SSY MiSNI a3ds 6LTITS SC0EC8T
%0°STE  +T 0bb 65— TR /E0° L2 T 870 0T apei Lz 1] 9v9* 1g NOSNYMS vav Q3ds TITTTS 3008781
%2 P¥IT 0T ¢£5°6b~ SOSET'2sE S0"8¢6'SY 018" 8+¢ 0 0TS “8p¢ S ,SYIHOVAL J3AdS OSTTITS BOOLZ8T
Q34S - TOOHIS 04 NOSNYMS T
%0° 0L Q0 00T T o0’ 00" 006 000°€ 0 o0n*g dO1EA3A " 4084 “INTHd  LELS TTOZEET
%C 9¥ 00" ITZ'T a0* 00 60T DmN”N Q 082°2 SIVHTIONING ‘S3INA BELS TTOZZRT
%6°0F SET8PZOT 00 T49 597008 005 1T 0 0058 °1T SAT1ddNS ONTINE¥d  Z2bS TTOZZRT
%e ST FLTIFS'T t6"97 2e°0ed 000°€ 0 000'€ I1ddns |\ STYdIDNIMd Tevts TTOZZRT
%001 Q0 00’ 00009 008 1] Q09 ¥ NOSNYMS '3DVISOd +PES TTOZZ8T
%P TOT §9°660°T- 09° /58" b9 86TPTE'ST TLZ2°64 0 Hmmnmn Tvs SITAVIIWIES  PETTTS TTOCT8T
%O 0T YL T/ /- 16 SEr 29T 1T AR T A4 BLE'TFT 0 b TA A 44 YIvS (SIYdIONINd 09TTTS TTOZP3T

12d

JTEAYIIVAY -

139ana ..o

SAONTHIAWAING.

d3aNIdX3 dLA
N ~ JISTATY

139ang |

SN LSO -
/SUANYYL -

L dOdddY

IYNIDTHO

. GNAd- v

IN3D
JE=(eE|

S INMO3DY

130d3d 139dnN4g F1VA-01L¥VIA

NJNdNv 40 NMO1



5T

K766
®ETETT

#0°
%6700T

®0°

abied

1T 2¥2°608°T
TT 22608t
99° /262~

P6TRP9°2
00
oo-
00"
00°
86°5k67 6~

05°708'6¢
927584'%

00°0sZ'2
Ze 910’2~

00°000"¢

139003
S13VIIVAY

S S3ONTEEWNONG.

9£"65F 900 £T
9£ 65+ 900°£2
60°6/8°5

24771

00" 000"+
7 29p°8
89°565°0¢8
18°80Z ¥
¥9°TEEEZT

00"
£9° 7707 THT

Qg-
99 £vZ' 6T

0ng-

LT 03ANIdXE

£5°/00' 50y
£5°200°¥50'y
15788 °BT

PETESEYL
00°
L5°ZED'L
CETPST
ET°T6.L°8
79 €L2°TY

00"
107 vr'nz

0o’
9% L7252

00-

$TZ°0L8°8 O ¥TZ'0:8°82
¥12'0£8'82 0 ¥12°0/8°82
000°22 0 00022
§29°0T 0 $29*0T
000'¥ 0 0007
005’6 g 005°6
052'0¢ 0 052! 0¢
000'€S 0 000° £€
BST'SST 0 6ST'SST
£09°6¢ 0 £08° 6€
0T9*Z9T 0 019 /9T
0s2‘7 0 0s2'2
$s6‘0zz 0 556022
000"¥ 6 000'y

o LADANG - L SUNLS OO
C O JISTAIM O /SHANVY TYNIDTHG

S3SN3dX3

prgpaALe 1gI ueibaag
L¥ILOZd LW LIASH
91 /T 2202/50/07 :padesaust Jrodsy

TYLlOL
ANNd IVHINSD IVLOL
OUdWI/SEIVdIY U8 QEpS 660ZFST

- 560ZFRT

IWIAOLSD SATVLdNS  O5HS H6OTHFETL
S ADYVHD ISN ¥3IMAS LS GEOTRET
VOU NOSNYMS ‘H3LYM TEZS BBOTHET
NYMS ‘T304 ONILYIH PTZS 6ROTPRT
SNYMS 4IMOd/SEHMDIT TTZY 660TFIT
Igolsnd SATHVIYS Z6TTES 660THST

NOSNYMS T OL NdT  98TTTS 660ZE81
S “IASUNN AYVIVS  SETITS 660Z£8T

'SATddNS FINYAIND LTSS PSOLZST
JIAVIVS IONVAING 9/TITS +SO/P8T

STAQIGNY 'SATddns  5T$S TSOOZSLT

S .ANNd TTYHINED -
C T IN04 SINNODOY

1d0d3d 1390N48 31VA-OL¥VIA

NaNgnv 40 NMO1




pngpak| B 197 wedholg
LYILGZA LMD T

qT abed agt T PTOTSS0S0T cpaaesauel aoday

sy LNDLOZJLM ELIRD9D AQ PIIBISUID ~ [HOLFY 40 GNI s
#LTED TE P2 608°T  9£°6SP O00°E2 €S'Z00'+#50°%  $TZ2°048°8T 0O vTZ'048°82 IVEGL GNYHD

.Ema:m....”.....”...m.muz,qmm&dzu.Bn_.,__mﬂ_.xm”g..”._.m_un_n_m..__.”......m.“.E.mB. .n_am&q..
L 8w TYAY ST e L e Ty SN TTYNED LY O

13043 139and d1LvVQ-OL-"¥VIA
NJNdnv 10 NMO1




Auburn Public Schools
FY23 Budget Transfers - For SC Information and Approval
October 5, 2022

Transfers Behween Same Scries

Function
Account Number Code Name From To Rutionale - Comment
1122011511160 2000 BM Principal Salary 3,434,190
1122011-511184 2000 BM Secretary Salary 3,075.79
1123608-511179 2008 BM Sped Instructional Asst 19,336.52
1123651-516680 200¢ BM Specialists 14,288.95
1423608-511170 2000 Pak Sped Teachers 1,452.96
1423056-511170 2000 Pak Teacher Salaries 25,000.00
1423050-511179 2000 Pak Instructional Assl 17,615.18
142345E-511179 2000 Pak Specialists 16,288.95
1523052-511180 2000 AMS Speciadists 10,540,290
1523052-511179 2008 AMS Instructional Asst 25,350.34
1527354-511176 2008 AMS Guidance 26,596.23
1622G11-511160 2004 AHS Principal Sataries 10,106.7G
1723099-31 1170 2000 Preschool Teachers 44,894 .92
E728008-511177 20600 Schonl Psychologist 10,523.86
1823051-3100 2000 SWIS BLL Tutor 6,236.04
1723099-5119 2000 Salaries' Reserve 154,439.39

1£23051-5100 2000 BM ELL Tutor 1,11845  To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1123058514172 2000 BM Math Parsprofessionat 669.26 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1£23051-512079 2000 BM Instructions Asst. Sub 36,22 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1823051-5126 2000 BM Teacher in Charge 242450 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
11230515129 2000 BM Other Stipends 2,478.19  To cover cost of Contractual Chligations
1127054-511176 2000 BM Guidance Salary 8,579.06 To cover cost of Contractua! Obligations
1422011-511160 2000 PAK Principal Salary 3,416.94  To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1422011-511184 2000 Pak Seerelary Satary 1,320.60  To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1423008-51 1179 2000 Pak SPED Instructional Asst, 97448 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
14230531-3100 2000 PAX ELL Tutor 1,110.50  To cover cost of Contractua!l Obligations
1423051-561172 2000 PAK Math Para Salary 1,832.5¢ To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1423851-312080 2000 Pak Long Term Sub Teacher 2,703.40  To cover cost of Contractual Qbligations
1423051-5126 2000 Pak Teacher in Charge 2,051L.39  To caver cost of Contractual Obligations
1427054-31E176 2000 Pak Guidance Salaries 008 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1522011-51160 2000 AMS Principat Salarics 8.474.28 To caver cosl of Confractual Obiigations
1522011-531£184 2000 AMS Secrelaries Salaries 4.0§2.02  To caver cost of Contractuat Obligations
1523008511170 2000 AMS Sped Teachers .24 Tocaver cost of Contractual Obligations
1523008-311172 2000 AMS Sped ABAs 20.346.6% To cover cosl of Contractuat Obligations
1523008-51117% 2000 AMS Sped Instructional Asst, 2022223 To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
1323052-3108 2000 AMS ELL Tutor 832723 To caver cost of Contracteal Obligations
1523052-514 170 2000 AMS Teacher Salarics 2,035.94  To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
1523052-5129 2000 AMS Other Stipends 2,327.85 To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
1623053-512080 2000 AHS Long Term Sub Teacher 35,000.00 To cover cost of Contractnat Obligations
1623053-5129 2000 AHS Other Stipends 8.035.59 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1625053-511178 2000 AHS Media Specialist 45.08 Te cover cost of Contractnat Obligations
1627054-511176 2000 AHS Guidance Salaries 7,676.1¢ To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1627054-511184 2000 AHS Guidance Secrelary Salary 1,044.87 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1721008-511152 2000 Director of Pupil Services 27,345.73 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
PP21008-512078 2000 Clinical Seevices 3,15¢.44 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1721010-51115% i000 Director of Technotogy 3,210.10 To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1723008-511158 2004 Team Chairs 3,252.43  To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
1723008-511170 2000 Teacher Salary 6.12 To cover cost of Conteactual Obligations

1723008-511180
1723099511179
1723099512079
1723099-512%

1728008-511159
1822011311160
1822011-511184
1823008-31117¢

2004 Spec.Ed Specialists

2000 Preschool Instmclional Asst
2004 Preschool [A Substitules
2400 Preschool Stipends

2000 BCBA

2000 SWIS Principals' Salaries
2000 SWIS Sceretarics

2000 SWIS Sped Teachers Salaries

0.22
1,475.11
506,61
5,392.54
14,398,562
7.271.14
1,099.68
49,533.10

To cover cost of Contraciual Obligations
To cover cost of Contraciual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Coniraciual Obligations
To cover cost of Confractual Obligations
To cover cost of Coniractuat Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
Fo cover cost of Contractual Obligations




1823008-51E172
1823051-511170
1823051-311180
1827034-511176

17210095733
1721009-5732

172309%-511170
1728008-511169

1542099-5430
1541099-5450

161622011-53422
£635053-5517

1741099-511192
£541099-5111%2

£723008-511179
1723008-511172

1123051-5510
1126031~-351%

1422011-5421
1422011-5734

E23051-5510
1423051-5440
E423051-5518

F635012-551017
1635012551016

1732099-511186
£723099-511185

1523052-5425
1523052-5440

1623608-511179
1623G53-511179

1741699-5129
1721609-511153

£742099-5262
1742095-5264

Auburn Public Scheols

FY23 Budget Transfers - For 5C Infarmation and Approval

CONTINUED FROM PAGE ONE

2000 SWIS Sped ABA

2000 SWIS Teacher Sataries
2000 SWIS Specialists

2000 SWIS Guidance Salaries

2000 Asst Superintendent Publications
2000 Asst Superintendent Dues

2000 Preschool Teachers
2000 Social Workers

4000 AMS Building Repairs
4000 AMS Custodial Supplies

2000 AHS Printing Supplies
2000 AHS Graphic Supplies

4000 Central Custodial Safary
4000 AMS Custodial Salaries

2000 Instructional Asst - Encore
2000 Sped ABA - Encore

2000 Bryn Mawr Classroom Supplies
2000 Bryn Mawr Audio Visual

2000 Pak Principal Supplies
2000 Pak Princigal Dues

2000 Pak Classroom Supplies
2000 Pak Physical Education supplies
2000 Pak Art Supplies

3000 Athictic Training Supplies
3000 Athletic Team Eguipment

3400 LPN 1iol Preschoot Nurse
3000 Preschool Nurse

2000 AMS Music Supplics
2000 AMS Physical Ed

2000 AHS Sped lnstructional Asst
2000 AHS Instructional Asst.

1000 Other Stipends
1000 Asst Superintendent Salary

4000 Equipmenl Repairs
4000 Fire Extinguishers

October 5, 2022

50.00

120,550.00

{6,235

2,793.00

25,859,88

33,728.50

88.44

23.00

8.40

640.33

23,653.00

288.66

30.00

10,000.00

963.20

59,449.14
3,899.32
45,000.00
2,016.32

50,00

120,550,00

16.25

2,793.00

25,859.88

33,928.50

88.44

23,00

2.44
596

64035

23,653.00

288.66

30.0¢

10,000,00

963.20

To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractua{ QObligetions
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contracius! Obligations

To cover overage in line

To atilize preschool revolving funds (o offset safaries

To cover overage in line

To cover gverage in ling

To move funding with the employee/building

To uiilize savings to cover new staff member

To cover overage in line

To cover overage in fine

T'o cover overage in line
Te cover overage in line

To cover overage in line

Te move funds to appropriate line for position

Te cover average in line

To cover overage in fine

To combine budgeted stipend with safary line

Te cover overage in line



Auburn Public Schools
FY23 Budget Transfers - For SC Information and Approval

October 5, 2022

Account Number

T‘ransf‘ers Between Differcnt Series

Function

Code

Name

From

Rationale - Comment

1723099-5119
1132099-511185
1141099-51£192
1423099-511185
1532099-51E185
1711099-5732
1712099-31£181
1712096-5737
1714099-311154
1714099-511182
1714059-511183
1714510-5111%1
E721009-511153
£721069-511184
1721010-311157
1723099-511185
E721099-311163
£742099-0511198
§742099-511291
1755099511190
184 1099-511192
1842099-5430

1721099-511184
1622011-511184

1723099-511172
1723099511185

2000 Salaries' Reserve

3000 Bryn Mawr Nurse Salary
4000 Bryn Mawr Salarics Cuslodial
3000 Pakacheoap Nurse Salary
3000 AMS Nurse Salary

1060 School Committee Dues

1000 Secretary to Superintendent
1000 Superintendent Professional Dev,
1000 Business Administrator

1000 Payroll Business Asst.

100¢ A/P Business Asst

1600 Tech Support fiviaint. Staff
100G Assistant Superintendent
1800 Secretary to Asst. Superintendent
F300 Disirict Data Coordinator
3000 Preschool Nurse

EB0D Athietic Director

4000 Facility Director

4004 Pari-time Maintenznce

5000 Crossing Guards

4000 SWIS Custodial Salaries
4000 SWIS Building Repairs

3000 Athletic Director Secretary
2000 AHS Secretaries Salaries

2000 Freschosl Sped ABA.
3000 Preschool Nurse

86,482.61

44,421.45

24,824.16

367.60
1,989.14
4,198.98

419.96

507.00
4,500,00
7,700.55
4,869.52
1,635.04
1,890.02
8,181.77
3,799.92
2,547.64
1,884.50

21,112.07
1,433.30
4,518,00

746,90
1,300.66
9,945.98
2,927.66

44,421 45

24,824,16

To cover cost of Contractual Obiligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover an overape in the line
To eover cost of Condractual Obligations
To cover cost of Conlractuat Obligations
To cover cost of Condractual Obligations
To cover cost of Comractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
To cover vost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractual Obligations
To cover cost of Contractuat Obligations
To cover unplanned building repairs

To move funds and combine with Secretarial iine

To move funds with the staff member position




School Department
Capital Plan Expanded

Description

Bidg. Rehab-Bryn Mawr

Bldg. Rehab-Pakachoag

Bldg. Rehab-Swanson Road

Bldg. Rehab-Middle School

Bldg. Rehab-High School

BLDG REHAB TOTAL

Ed Equipment - BM
Ed. Equipment - PAK
Ed. Equipment - SWIS
Ed Eguipment - AMS
Ed Equipment - AHS

iPad Equipment Purchases
EQUIPMENT TOTAL

SCHOOL DISTRICT TOTAL

Pregented to SC 10/12/22

Fiscal Year 2028

urpos

Flooring Replacement

PA System Upgrade to support
Lockdown protocol

Exterior Door Replacement

PA System Upgrade to support
Lockdown protocol

Boor Replacement

Parking iot safety redasign

Exterior Door Replacement

PA System Upgrade to support
Lockdown protocol

Generator switchgear replacement

Ballard/Barrier Gates

Sprinkler Project Design

HVAC
PA System Upgrade to support
Lackdown protocod

PA System Upgrade to support
Lockdown protocol upgrade
Pumps / Drives HVAC

Continue implementation of system
wide technology upgrades. Replace

school furniture, as needed to include

desks, chairs andfor cabinets. Also
inciudes necessary replacement of
copiers district-wide,

FY2024

$ 50,000
$ 25,000
$ 15,000

$ 25,000
$ 40,000
$100,000
$ 25,000
$ 35,000
$ 15,000
$ 10,000
$ 25,000
$ 60,000
$ 50,000
$ 50,000
$ 65,000

$590,000

$150,000

$150,000
$300,000

$890,000



School Department
Capita! Plan Expanded

Description
Bidg. Rehab-Bryn Mawr

8ld. Rehah-Pakachoag
Bidg. Rehab Swanson Road

Bidg Rehab-Middle School

Bldg Rehab-High School

Bldg Rehab-Central Admin.

District-Wide
BUILDING REHAB TOTAL
Ed. Equipment-BM TN

Ed. Equipment-PAK
Ed. Equipment-SWIS
Ed. Equipment-AMS

Ed. Equipment-AHS S
—

iPad Lease

EQUIPMENT TOTAL

SCHOOL DISTRICT TOTAL

SC Approved 10-3-18
Amendment Approved by SC 12-5-18
Amendment for SC approval

Fiscal Year 2024

Purpose

Replace Univents
Install {2) Roof Top HVAC Units — Cafetorium

Ongoing Asbestos Projects

Continue Flooring Upgrades/AHERA
Parking Lot resurfacing
Replacement of Score Boards

Playground Upgrades

Continue implementation of

system-wide technology upgrades,
including switch upgrades/replacements,
as well adaptive technologies, as required.
Replace scheol furniture, as needed, to
fnclude desks, chairs and/or cabinets

Also includes copier leases purchases
District-Wide

FY2024 Amounts

$ 75,000
$ 50,00

$ 15,000
$ o
$ 4]

$ 40,000
$200,000
$ 40,000

$ 0

$ 75,000

$495,000

$200,000

$150,000

$350,000

$845,000




